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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET
("GEM") OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
(THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
companies to which a higher investment risk may be attached
than other companies listed on the Exchange. Prospective investors
should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies
and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of
GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other
sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a
risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high
market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no
assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities
traded on GEM.

This document, for which the directors of the Company collectively
and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in
compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange for the purpose of giving information
with regard to the Company. The directors, having made all
reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and
belief:

1. the information contained in this document is accurate and
complete in all material respects and not misleading or
deceptive;

2. there are no other matters the omission of which would
make any statement herein or this document misleading;
and

3. all opinions expressed in this document have been arrived
at after due and careful consideration and are founded on
bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange
takes no responsibility for the contents of this document, makes
no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly
disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from
or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this

document.
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On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Neo Telemedia Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to
present to the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”)
the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
known as the “"Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2010.

Overview and Prospects

For the year ended 30 June 2010, the Group’s net loss
attributable to owners of the parent was approximately HKD44.5
million (2009: HKD33.8 million) whilst the turnover decreased
from approximately HKD48.4 million to HKD44.8 million. The
Group's net asset was increased to approximately HKD451.2
million as at 30 June 2010 (2009: HKD37.1 million).

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 30 June 2010.

The Group has entered into a few important and major business
transactions during the past financial year in order to expand
into new core business area. The Group ventured into the fast
growing telecommunication, wireless and outdoor electronic
advertising media sectors in the People’s Republic of China
("China”)’'s booming economy in order to complement the
existing business of film media. The Group has also raised fund
through placement of new shares to invest into these businesses.

The venturing into the telecommunication, wireless and outdoor
electronic advertising media sector in China is a very important
step for the Group to participate into some of the key attractive
fast growing sectors in China. This allows the Group to benefit
from the expansion of China economy especially those business
sectors that related to the thriving domestic consumption and
market demand. The Group is very positive of the investment in
China based on the fact that overall macro economy of China is
very strong. The gross domestic product (the “"GDP”) recorded
for the first half of 2010 is 11.1%. The GDP of China has grown
with an average of 10% in the past 30 years. The China
Government has also shown determination to stimulate the
economy during the challenging period and has launched some
RMB of 4,000 billion stimulus package of investment during last
year. The size of economy is now the second largest after United
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRFE>>

States of America (the “USA”) and overtook Japan with GDP of
USD1.33 trillion in the second quarter 2010. The foreign reserve
stood at USD2.45 trillion in the mid of the year and is the world
largest and still ever growing.

During the first half of the financial year, the Group has
completed the acquisition of the China Wimetro Group which
has the management team and expertise in the selected area of
telecommunication. The investment is for long term and of
strategic value to the Group as the Group is preparing itself for
the involvement in the flourishing telecommunication in China
like the implementation of WIFI in most of the major cities in
China, the
announcement of kick start of merging the internet, TV and

launching of 3G network and the latest
mobile into one congruence channel and network. Although the
investment may not bring immediate profit during the initial
stage, the Group believes the investment will be profitable in

future.

During the second half of the financial year, the Group made
another major acquisition of Ease Ray Group which engage in
the design and production of traffic signboards and computer
graphics, research, development and production of signal systems
equipment, and design and production and advertisement. This
acquisition allows the Group to tap into the fast growing sector
The
innovative traffic signboards is unique, first of its kind in China,

of outdoor electronic advertisement media in China.
carries a lot of new breakthrough features and will be installed
throughout all the major cities in China. This investment is also
for long term and serves one of the core businesses for the
Group. We trust that the prospect of this Group is bright and
also promising judging from encouragement of the Central
government to drive up the domestic demand and consumption
in order to replace the possible slowdown of the export sectors.
Thus the demand for the advertisement will be increased
strongly accordingly. This acquisition is pending for the

shareholder approval.

In order to fund the investment in the Ease Ray Group, the
Group has made a fund rising through the placement of new
shares and raised a gross proceed of approximately HKD410.4
million during the second half of the financial year. The fund
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raised is essential and is in line with the Group objective to
increase the capital and reserve of the Group to approximately
HKD451.2 million from HKD37.1 million also to strengthen the
asset bases of the Group. The fund raised allows the Group to
venture into the identified core business area without having to
borrow fund and incur interest expense and also increase the
gearing level of the Group.

As a result, the Group also made a name change of the
company to Neo Telemedia Limited in order to reflect the Group
future business direction and vision of the Group.

As for the existing business, the Group launched a number of
films, including “Echoes of the Rainbow” and “Beauty on Duty”
which received encouraging responses from the market. Some
other films are being produced or in the planning stage.
Following the formation of an artiste management team since
2007, the team has successfully signed up a number of artiste.
This has become a base to build our talent management
business and the Group recognises the strategic importance on
nurturing successors who would be much in demand as the
number of production grows. Management would continue to
seek and invest into high potential projects from creative talents,
as well as seeking potential artiste and performers and aims to
generate high quality entertainment contents.

To achieve the entire targeted business goal in the existing and
new business area, the Group will emphasize on the strength of
the management and staff team. The Group has made a few
new appointments of the executive Directors in order to
reinforce the top management control of the new business. The
Group will also strengthen the existing management team by
giving vigorous and good training to the managers and also
recruiting experienced and capable manager to handle the
execution plan.

The Group will also review constantly the management process
and system of the Group in order to achieve greater efficiency
and profitability. The Group will also put an emphasis in the
internal control in order to maintain the good management
practice and safeguard the Group asset.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRFE>>

In conclusion, the Group is positive and optimistic with the
prospect of the Group based on the existing business portfolio
and the strength of the management to execute the business
plan to achieve its targeted goal. The Group is also constantly
look out for the future business opportunity to invest which may

add value to the Group.

Financial Position

For the year under review, the Group has engaged in production
of movies, artiste management, research and development and
sales of communication products, telecommunication products,
electronic products and computer software and hardware and
providing wireless services in China. As at 30 June 2010, the
Group had total current assets of approximately HKD243.1
million (2009: HKD34.0 million), including cash and cash
equivalents of approximately HKD148.2 million (2009: HKD1.5
million), and trade receivables, prepayments, deposits and other
receivables of approximately HKD88.7 million (2009: HKD32.5
million).

The Group’s turnover for the year ended 30 June 2010
amounted to approximately HKD44.8 million (2009: HKD48.4
million).

Gearing Ratio

The gearing ratio as at 30 June 2010, representing obligations
under finance leases divided by net assets, was approximately

0.0047% (2009: 0.7285%).

The Group had no borrowings as at 30 June 2010.

Commitments, Event after the Reporting Period
and Deed of Charge

Details of commitments, event after the reporting period and
deed of charge of the Group were set out in notes 33, 39 and

37 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Foreign Exchange Exposure and Treasury Policies

Since most of the Group’s cash balances and income are
primarily denominated in Hong Kong dollars, no hedging or
other alternatives have been implemented. The Group has not
experienced any material difficulty or effect on its operations of
liquidity as a result of fluctuations in currency exchange rates.
As at 30 June 2010 and 30 June 2009, the Group did not have

outstanding hedging instruments.

Employees

As at 30 June 2010, the Group had 30 staff (2009: 13). The
total of employee remuneration, including that of the Directors,
for the year under review and last corresponding year amounted
respectively to approximately HKD5.3 million (2009: HKD4.4
million). The Group remunerates its employees based on their
performance, experience and the prevailing industry practice.
Employee remuneration, excluding Directors’ emoluments, is
reviewed annually. In addition to the basic salaries, employees
are also entitled to benefits including bonus and mandatory
provident fund. On 22 July 2002, the Company had adopted a
share option scheme under which full time employees, including
Directors, of the Company and its subsidiaries, might be granted
options to subscribe for the Company’s ordinary shares. At 30
June 2010, no share options were granted under the share
option scheme.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
express my sincere thankfulness to the Group’s shareholders and
customers for their consistent support, to the management and
staff for their hard work and contribution during the year.
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Executive Directors

Mr. Li Hongrong, aged 49, was appointed as the chairman,
executive Director on 30 October 2008. He was graduated from
institution

tertiary in China and has extensive corporate

management experience in various commercial sectors and

capital market. He has worked closely with governmental,

financial and telecommunication industries.

Mr. Zhou Zhibin, aged 39, was appointed as executive Director
on 2 November 2009. He was graduated from Zhongshan
University and Lingnan College, holds a Bachelor degree in
Economics. He worked in a number of PRC financial institutions
1992 to September 2000,
management. Since then, he worked for Guangzhou Youngy

from responsible for credit
Management & Investment Group Co., Ltd. and other investment
companies, responsible for investment, financing and guarantee

business.

Mr. Theo Ede, aged 37, was appointed as executive Director on
13 May 2010. He was graduated from the department of
philosophy of Freiburg University in Germany and obtained a
Master degree of Arts. He has served with various international
enterprises such as General Electric Company in Europe and
Limited in PRC as a
management member. He is familiar with international capital

Nanhua Futures Company, senior
market and deeply comprehensive of the development of macro-
economy, holding professional qualification of futures industry in

PRC.

Mr. Ou Bai, aged 46, was appointed as executive Director on
13 May 2010. He was graduated from Guangdong University of
Technology with MBA degree, holding a economist qualification
certificate. During the period of 1987 to 2010, he has served as
a senior management member and economist with various
Chinese, American and Hong Kong companies. He has 22 years
of extensive experience in investment analysis and research,
corporate listing and financial market, and is versed of market
operations.

-
==

BITESE

FRERE 49 RZZEZENF+A=
THEZHEAETRRNTES - HEER
FEAEEFAANEEEIREAT SR
BEZOEETRLR  FTHREHEBN - U
BREMITEBEDIIERIE -

BAEWMEE 395 RZZEZENF+—A
“HEZERATEST - FEEXEMNFLX
BREmBhk BAKBEEZ2LEL RN
—NWNZFRBRE_ZZETFLAHMB - &
BEAZRRER  EEEEBREIE-
FEES BEBRAEMNREREETRES
EERARRAEMKBERAIETRE - &
BREREBIE-

Theo Edeft% 37 W-_ZE—ZTF A A
T-HEZARNTES - FEENEHR
#5782 K Z (Freiburg  University) 5 £2 Z 3 &
SCRHE T 87 o B 518 12 BUOM A B
BABERAR MEHEQASHEBR ML
E¥ENeREREIFE AXEBREATS L
HERBRESRBERZNER THETH
Wih I E R E B -

BHEkE 46 R-_FT-TFRAT=
BEZERNTES REXENERIE
ARETHOCEXEEMAL  BELEME
BRBE B NWN\ELFE_ZT-TFHH -
EREFTERA XBRR - FBERAR
SREBABREEN  BENRFLEN

BRESTEMT X LT BT IHH
i AEMIGERE -

Neo Telemedia Limited Annual Report 2010



Mr. Zhang Fan, aged 38, was appointed as executive Director
and chief executive officer on 9 September 2010. He was
graduated from Stanford University, the United States of America
with a Master of Business Administration and Bachelor Degree in
Economics. From 1997 to 2010, he has worked at international
investment bank Goldman Sachs and venture capital funds
Draper Fisher Jurvetson ePlanet Ventures and Sequoia Capital
China. He has extensive experiences in investment analysis and
research for People’s Republic of China companies, corporate
listing as well as financial markets. Mr. Zhang has served as
non-executive directors of companies listed on NASDAQ, the
United States of America and Tokyo Stock Exchange (such as
Kongzhong Corporation). Mr. Zhang has also served as non-
executive director of Baidu, Inc. a NASDAQ the United States of
America listed company before Baidu, Inc.’s initial public offering.
Mr. Zhang has also served as board observer of Focus Media
Holding Limited a NASDAQ the United States of America listed
company before Focus Media Holding Limited’s initial public
offering.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lam Kin Kau, Mark, aged 56, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 31 March 2005. Mr. Lam
is a practicing certified public accountant in Hong Kong and a
member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales. Mr. Lam is also members of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators respectively. He has over 22 years
of experience in professional auditing, accounting and financial
management. Mr. Lam is currently the sole proprietor of Messrs.
Mark K. Lam & Co., certified public accountants, which is
specialized in providing professional auditing and corporate
advisory services to various private and public entities. He is also
the independent non-executive director of CCT Resources
Holdings Ltd., which is listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Hu Yangjun, aged 37, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 13 May 2010. He was graduated from
Anhui Normal University. He has worked in Zhejiang Orient
Group, M T ERE TIZERKR AR QA
Dongfang Holdings Company Limited) and Insigma Group Co.,

(Zhejiang Ju Neng

Ltd. He has several years of corporate management experience
in various industries such as IT and international trade. Mr. Hu is
a member of All-China Youth Federation.

Professor Song Junde, aged 72, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 14 July 2010. He is a
professor and doctoral supervisor of Computer College of Beijing
University of Posts and Telecommunications. He is currently a
director of PCN&CAD centre, Beijing University of Posts and
Telecommunications, which is a key ministerial-level laboratory of
Ministry of Industry and Information Technology (MIIT), chairman
of CMIS of China Communications Standards Association (CCSA),
honorary doctor of Moscow Institute of Electronic Engineering,
subject appraisal group member of Academic Degrees Committee
of the State Council, postdoctoral evaluation expert of Ministry
of Personnel, Chinese chairman of IFIP TC7 of International
Federation for Information Processing, communication technology
committee member of Ministry of Information Industry and
professional consultant of satellite and radio, specialist of Expert
Advisory Committee of CCSA, expert of Technical Committee of
CCSA, deputy director of Network and Data Communications
Professional Committee of China Computer Federation, director
of PCN&CAD centre and CTI research centre which are key
ministerial-level laboratories of Ministry of Information Industry.
He previously held various positions in Beijing University of Posts
and Telecommunications including chairman of Academic Degrees
Committee and dean of Graduate School.
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The Directors present herewith their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 30 June 2010.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
the principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in
Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

Results and Appropriations

The Group's loss for the year ended 30 June 2010 and the state
of affairs of the Group at 30 June 2010 are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 29 to 32. The
Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in
respect of the year.

Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 120.
This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated
financial statements.

Reserves

Movements in reserves of the Group during the year are set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 32.

Distributable Reserves

As at 30 June 2010, the Company has distributable reserves
available for distribution to shareholders of the Company
amounted to HKD236,162,000. Under the Companies Law
(Revised) by the Cayman Islands, the share premium of the
Company is distributable to the shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a
position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business. The share premium may also be distributed
in form of fully paid bonus shares.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in Note 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Share Capital and Share Options

Movements in the Company’s share capital and share options
during the year are set out in Notes 28 and 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company is
incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new

shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

Purchase, Redemption or Sale of Listed Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 30 June 2010.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable
to the Group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases
—  the largest supplier 6%
—  five largest suppliers combined 20%

Sales
—  the largest customer 13%
—  five largest customers combined 24%

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers
or customers noted above.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.
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Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares

As at 30 June 2010, the interests or short positions of the
Directors in the securities of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) which were notified to
the Company and the Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO, including interests or short positions which
they were deemed or taken to have under such provisions of the
SFO, or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which
were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.68 of the GEM
Listing Rules relating to securities transactions by directors, to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as
follows:

ort of the Directors
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EERRMZERRRXE
RZE—ZTFNA=1TH EZTRAQAEHK
HEMEBER (EERELFRARKRN(E
FRHMEBEMNDEXNVEIZEBLDEAR
BEENBEIEGEXVEFEIRESH LA
MEaRNTRRBIA2ERIKE (BIER
EREEFRHEKRIZZEBRXERE
REREBZERIAR)  HBRBEFHFR
HEKG EI2HEBALAZIENMBEZERL
MrRzEZHAR  KIBEBEBEBESHET
BHERGZAIZER LR BIE5.46% £5.68
BRAEME RNAE R AT 2SI K B W
T

Long positions in the shares of the Company REATHBRMBZIFE
Approximate
No. of shareholding
Name of Director Nature of interest Position shares held percentage
k-] B R
EEns M HE % &8 BLE
Mr. Li Hongrong Interest of controlled corporation  Long 424,380,000 Shares 2.75%
(Note)
FHEKREE Sk N o o) 424,380,000 % % 15
(B %)

Ms. Chen Xiao Rong Beneficial owner Long 3,000,000 Shares 0.02%

PREEES &+ Em#EAA o) 3,000,000 % f% 15

Mr. Zhou Zhibin Beneficial owner Long 24,860,000 Shares 0.16%

AER %L E EmEAA A 24,860,000 3% % 1%

Note: These Shares are held by Tread Up Investments Limited, of which Mr. Li  Fi&E: 52 5800 B 2 6 & 58 & % 5100% ¥ & # 2
Hongrong has 100% control. Thus, he is deemed to be interested in the Tread Up Investments Limited#5 748 © E it + 1R &
424,380,000 Shares held by Tread Up Investments Limited pursuant to FEBHENMBEKD - %K AR A Tead Up
the SFO. Investments Limited ¥ A 2 424,380,000 & i {n &

mERER

Save as disclosed above, the Directors do not have any interests FR FXPT#HE HIN  EFME R AR AR

or short positions in the shares of the Company.
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Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Details of the Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
are set out in Note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.
Other than that set out in the share option scheme, at no time
during the year was the Company, or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors, their
respective spouse or children under 18 years of age to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company or any other body corporate.

Directors
The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of

this report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Li Hongrong

Mr. Zhou Zhibin (appointed on 2 November 2009)
Mr. Theo Ede (appointed on 13 May 2010)

Mr. Ou Bai (appointed on 13 May 2010)

Mr. Zhang Fan (appointed on 9 September 2010)
Dr. Yap, Allen (resigned on 20 July 2009)

Mr. Tong Hing Chi (resigned on 3 June 2010)

Mr. Zhuo Wu (resigned on 16 July 2010)

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Lam Kin Kau, Mark

Mr. Hu Yangjun (appointed on 13 May 2010)
Professor Song Junde (appointed on 14 July 2010)

Mr. Fung Wing Keung (resigned on 24 June 2010)

Mr. Law Kwok Leung (resigned on 24 June 2010)

Ms. Chen Xiao Rong (resigned on 9 September 2010)
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Directors (continued)

The Directors are subject to retirement and

in the forthcoming annual

re-election by

rotation general meeting in

accordance with the Company’s articles of association.

Directors’ Biographies

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company are set out
on pages 10 to 12 of the annual report.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company, any of its fellow subsidiaries or its
parent company was a party and in which a Director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Interests and Short Positions of Shareholders
Disclosable Under the SFO

The register of substantial shareholders required to be kept
under section 336 of Part XV of the SFO shows that as at 30
June 2010, the Company had been notified of the following
substantial shareholders’ interests and short positions, being 5%
or more of the Company’s issued share capital. These interests
are in addition to those disclosed above in respect of the
Directors and chief executives.
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Interests and Short Positions of Shareholders *E?E?%&HH SZBIEFHREZRE
Disclosable Under the SFO (continved) EERixBa
Long positions 3e
Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name Nature of interests shares held shareholding
&8 g FiIsERGHE BARBRESE
Lee Tak Ming Beneficial owner 908,000,000 Shares 5.89%
Z{E8 EmEAA 908,000,000 % A% 15

Save as disclosed above and in “Directors’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares”, the Company had no notice of any interests
and short positions to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of
the SFO.

Directors’ Interest in Competing Business

None of the Directors or management shareholders of the
Company (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) has an interest in
a business which compete or may compete with the business of
the Group.

Corporate Governance Report

Corporate governance report of the Company is set out on
pages 19 to 25 of the annual report.

Sufficiency of Public Float

The Company maintained a sufficient public float as required
under the GEM Listing Rules during the year ended 30 June
2010.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30
June 2010 have been audited by Zhonglei (HK) CPA Company
Limited who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment.

On behalf of the Board
Li Hongrong

Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 September 2010
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Corporate Governance Report

AN A s YA
X ERAHE>>
Compliance with the Code on Corporate BFEEEREHRTH

Governance Practices

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles and the code provisions (the “Code"”) as set out in the
Code on Corporate Governance Practices as set out in Appendix
15 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM
of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”). The principles
adopted by the Company emphasis a quality board, transparency
and accountability to shareholders. In the opinion of the Board,
the Company has complied with the Code for the year ended
30 June 2010, with the exception of the deviation in respect of
the code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the
Directors and the appointment term of non-executive Directors
as mentioned below.

Under code provision A.4.1, non-executive Directors should be
appointed for specific term. There is no specific term of
appointment of the non-executive Directors, however, they are
subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the articles
of association of the Company. Accordingly the Company
considers that sufficient measures have been taken to dealt with
the requirement in respect of the appointment terms of non-
executive Directors as required under the code provision.

Code of Conduct Regarding Securities Transactions
by Directors

The Company had adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of dealings set out in rules 5.48 to
5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company also had made
specific enquiry of all Directors and the Company was not aware
of any non-compliance with the required standard of dealings
and its code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
Directors during the year ended 30 June 2010, except Mr. Li
Hongrong, the executive Director has breached rules 5.56(a) and
5.61 of the GEM Listing Rules by disposing 670,000,000 and
238,000,000 shares of the Company on 5 February 2010 and 9
February 2010 respectively and 5,300,000, 20,000,000 and
1,280,000 shares of the Company on 7 April 2010, 9 April 2010
and 12 April 2010 respectively.
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Code of Conduct Regarding Securities Transactions
by Directors (Continued)

In order to prevent a reoccurrence of similar breaches in the
future, a new personal secretary will be appointed in attending
to the Company’'s compliance matters to the Directors. In
addition, the Company shall remind the Directors from time to
time that the code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transaction on terms as set out under rule 5.48 to 5.67 was
adopted by the Company to ensure each Director’s compliance

of the relevant GEM Listing Rules provisions in the future.

Board of Directors

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of accounts, which shall give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group. Details of the basis of
preparation of accounts are set out in Note 3 to the accounts.
The Board is also responsible for formulating the Group’s long-
term strategy, determining and approving the Group's significant
transactions and supervising the management to ensure
thorough implementation of the Group’s policies and effective
performance of their duties. Other decisions are to be delegated
to management. As at 30 June 2010, the Board comprised eight
Directors, including five executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. The executive Directors are
Mr. Li Hongrong (Chairman), Mr. Zhuo Wu, Mr. Zhou Zhibin, Mr.
Theo Ede and Mr. Ou Bai.

Directors are Mr. Lam Kin Kau, Mark, Ms. Chen Xiao Rong and

The independent non-executive

Mr. Hu Yangjun. Later, Professor Song Junde was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 14 July 2010. Mr.
Zhuo Wu was resigned as an executive Director and chief
executive officer on 16 July 2010. On 9 September 2010, Mr.
Zhang Fan was appointed as an executive Director and chief
executive officer while Ms. Chen Xiao Rong was resigned as
independent non-executive Director. Biographies of the Directors

are set out in pages 10 to 12.
There is no non-compliance with rules 5.05(1) and (2) of the

GEM Listing Rules and there is no relationship among members
of the Board and the independent non-executive Directors.
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Board of Directors (continued) ESEW

Throughout the year ended 30 June 2010, 15 Board meetingg REBEZE-_Z—ZTHF<A=ZTHILFERA

were held. Details of the attendance of Directors are as follows: [ TISXEEZ@ & 22 HEFBH T

Directors’ EE

Name of the Directors Attendance EEHHZ =

Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Li Hongrong 14/15 =B SL A 14/15

Mr. Zhou Zhibin (appointed on 2 November 2009) 1M AEREERZZEZNF 1M/11
+—A-BEZT)

Mr. Theo Ede (appointed on 13 May 2010) 3/3 Theo Edeft £ (RZE—ZF 3/3
TA+=HEZME)

Mr. Ou Bai (appointed on 13 May 2010) 3/3 BMREERZZ—ZF 3/3
FA+T=AEZMT)

Mr. Zhang Fan (appointed on 9 September 2010) 00 FHTMELE(R-ZZE—ZF 0/0
NAENBEZRT)

Dr. Yap, Allen (resigned on 20 July 2009) 0/1  Yap, AllanBE T (RZZEZENF 0/1
Tt AZTRAEE)

Mr. Tong Hing Chi (resigned on 3 June 2010) 114 BEREE(RZZE—ZF 1/14
NA=ZBEE)

Mr. Zhuo Wu (resigned on 16 July 2010) 9/15 BEhREE(RZZE—ZF 9/15
+ A+ NBET)

Independent Non-executive Directors BIAEBITES

Mr. Lam Kin Kau, Mark 1215 MEIREAE 12/15

Mr. Hu Yangjun (appointed on 13 May 2010) 33 HBELERZZT—ZF 3/3
AA+=REZT)

Professor Song Junde (appointed on 14 July 2010) 00 REBHEBEWVRZ-ZT—ZF 0/0
+tA+MNBEZE)

Mr. Fung Wing Keung (resigned on 24 June 2010) 14715 BXBEE(R_E—ZFF 14/15
NAZTOBEEE)

Mr. Law Kwok Leung (resigned on 24 June 2010) 5/15 BERBREE(R-Z—ZTF 5/15
NAZTMABE)

Ms. Chen Xiao Rong (resigned on 1215 BMEEZT(RZE—ZF 12/15

9 September 2010)
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Under code provision A.4.1, non-executive Directors should be
appointed for specific term. There is no specific term of
appointment of the non-executive Directors of the Company,
however, they are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance
with articles of association of the Company. Accordingly the
Company considers that sufficient measures have been taken to
dealt with the requirement in respect of the appointment terms

of non-executive Directors as required under the code provision.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has made an
annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of
the GEM Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all
independent non-executive Directors meet the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and are
independent in accordance with the terms of the guidelines. The
Board held a board meeting for each quarter to discuss and
approve the Group's results. The then board members attended

the meetings.

In addition, the then Directors attended the board meetings to
approve the appointment and resignation of Directors during the
year.

Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer

Under the code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer are separate and are not performed by the
same individual. The chairman is responsible for overseeing the
function of the Board and formulating overall strategies and
policies of the Group. The chief executive officer, supported by
the senior management, is responsible for managing the Group’s
responsibilities, the business, implementing major strategies,
making day-to-day decisions and coordinating overall business
operations.

Mr. Zhuo Wu was appointed as chief executive officer and Mr. Li
Hongrong was appointed as chairman of the Company with effect
from 12 December 2007 and 30 October 2008 respectively. Mr. Zhuo
Wu resigned as the chief executive officer of the Company with
effect from 16 July 2010. The Company has appointed Mr. Zhang Fan
as chief executive officer on 9 September 2010 to fill the vacancy.
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Nomination of Directors

No nomination committee was established by the Company.

The Board is suitable

candidates for members of the Board when there is a vacancy

mainly responsible for identifying
or any additional director is considered necessary. The Board will
review the qualifications of the relevant candidate for
determining the suitability to the Group on the basis of his

qualifications, experience and background.

Board Committees

To assist the Board in discharge of its duties, the Board is
supported by two board committees. Each committee has its
defined scope of duties and terms of reference and the
committee members are empowered to make decisions on

matters within the terms of reference of each committee.

1.  Audit Committee

The Company has established an audit committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with Rules 5.28
to 5.33 of the GEM Listing Rules. The primary duties of
the audit committee are (a) to review the Group’s annual
reports, interim reports and quarterly reports; (b) to discuss
and review with the auditor of the Company on the scope
and findings of the audit; and (c) to supervise the financial
reporting process and internal control procedures of the
Group.

The audit committee consists of all of the Company’s
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lam Kin
Kau, Mark, Mr. Hu Yangjun and Professor Song Junde. Mr.
Hu Yangjun and Professor Song Junde were appointed as
the members of audit committee on 24 June 2010 and 14
July 2010 respectively. However, during the year, Mr. Fung
Wing Keung and Mr. Law Kwok Leung were resigned as
the members of audit committee on 24 June 2010. Ms.
Chen Xiao Rong was resigned as the member of audit
committee on 9 September 2010. The chairman of the
audit committee is Mr. Lam Kin Kau, Mark.
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Board Committees (Continued)

1.
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Audit Committee (Continued)

The audit committee held four meetings during the year
under review and the then committee members attended
the meetings.

The Group’s unaudited quarterly and interim results and
audited annual results during the year ended 30 June 2010
have been reviewed by the audit committee, which is of
opinion that the preparation of such results complied with
the applicable accounting standards and requirements and
that adequate disclosure have been made.

Details of the members’ attendance of the audit committee
meetings are as follows:

Members’
Name of the Members Attendance
Mr. Lam Kin Kau, Mark 3/4
Mr. Hu Yangjun 0/0
(appointed on 24 June 2010)
Professor Song Junde 0/0
(appointed on 14 July 2010)
Mr. Fung Wing Keung 3/4
(resigned on 24 June 2010)
Mr. Law Kwok Leung 1/4
(resigned on 24 June 2010)
Ms. Chen Xiao Rong 2/4

(resigned on 9 September 2010)

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a remuneration committee
according to the relevant provisions of the GEM Listing
Rules with written terms of reference.
are (a)
Company’s policy and structure for all remuneration of

Its primary duties
to make remunerations to the Board on the
Directors and senior management; and (b) to establish a
formal and transparent procedure for developing policy on
such remuneration.
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Board Committees (Continued)

2. Remuneration Committee (Continued)

The remuneration committee consists of all of the
Company’s independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Lam Kin Kau, Mark, Mr. Hu Yangjun and Professor
Song Junde. Mr. Hu Yangjun and Professor Song Junde
were appointed as the members of remuneration
committee on 24 June 2010 and 14 July 2010 respectively.
During the year, Mr. Fung Wing Keung and Mr. Law Kwok
Leung were resigned as the members of remuneration
committee on 24 June 2010. Ms. Chen Xiao Rong was
resigned as the member of remuneration committee on 9
September 2010. The chairman of the remuneration
committee is Mr. Lam Kin Kau, Mark.

During the year, the committee met to discuss the
remuneration related matters. During the meeting, the
performance of executive Directors was assessed, and the
remuneration of whom and the policy of which was
discussed and approved.

Details of the members’ attendance of the remuneration
committee meetings are as follows:

Members’
Name of the Members Attendance
Mr. Lam Kin Kau, Mark 2/3
Mr. Hu Yangjun 0/0
(appointed on 24 June 2010)
Professor Song Junde 0/0
(appointed on 14 July 2010)
Mr. Fung Wing Keung 2/3
(resigned on 24 June 2010)
Mr. Law Kwok Leung 1/3
(resigned on 24 June 2010)
Ms. Chen Xiao Rong 2/3

(resigned on 9 September 2010)

Auditor's Remuneration

The statement by the auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities are set out in the independent auditor’s
report on pages 26 to 28. During the year, auditor’s
remuneration for audit services were approximately HK$480,000.
Save as disclosed above, there was no other significant non-
audit services assignment undertaken by the external auditor
during the year.
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g

TO THE MEMBERS OF NEO TELEMEDIA LIMITED
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS BIG MEDIA GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Neo
Telemedia Limited (formerly known as Big Media Group Limited)
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) set out on pages 29 to 119, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2010,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

notes.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting
estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

26 ED Neo Telemedia Limited Annual Report 2010
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our
audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
Institute of Certified Public
Those standards require that we comply with

issued by the Hong Kong
Accountants.
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the

auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the Directors, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 30 June
2010 and of the Group's loss and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

ZHONGLEI (HK) CPA COMPANY LIMITED
Certified Public Accountants (Practising)
Chan Chi Kei, Ronald

Practising Certificate Number: P04255

Hong Kong
22 September 2010

Suites 216-218, 2/F., Shui On Centre

6—-8 Harbour Road, Wanchai
Hong Kong
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For the year ended 30 June 2010 HE=Z~ZFNA=1THIFE

=)

2010 2009
—F—%F ZTEThEF
Notes HKD’000 HKD'000
B 5E TH&ET FAT
(restated)
(& E5)
Turnover BEH 9 44,804 48,394
Cost of sales 85 & K R (43,191) (48,869)
Gross profit (loss) EFI(EHE) 1,613 (475)
Other income H AU A 9 2,315 560
Selling and marketing costs $HE RIS HEE KA (6,970) (8,066)
Administrative and other expenses 1T N E ith & F (35,509) (25,836)
Impairment loss recognised in HEERAZAEEE
respect of goodwill (5,895) —
Finance costs Bl & Bl AR 11 (8) (18)
Loss before taxation BR¥iriEsE (44,454) (33,835)
Income tax expenses FT 15 8 f 2 12 (10) —
Loss for the year EEBE 13 (44,464) (33,835)
Exchange differences on translation [ &8 5h 75
of financial statements of foreign VBEWMERAMEE 2
operations ME N =5 (57) —
Total comprehensive loss for the FANEHEBEELERE B
year, net of tax (44,521) (33,835)
Loss for the year attributable to: LI FATEIGEEREIE:
Owners of the parent [SNEIE ¥ -PN (44,464) (33,835)
Total comprehensive loss DTALTEGEZE
attributable to: BiEEE:
Owners of the parent [SNCIE PPN (44,521) (33,835)
HK cents HK cents
7 1 AL
Loss per share BREBR
— Basic — HEK 14 (0.339) (0.271)
— Diluted — &8 14 N/A N/A
A A i A
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At 30 June 2010 A=

30 June 30 June 1 July
2010 2009 2008
—EB—-FF —TThF ZTENF
~A=+H ~A=+H +A—B8
Notes HKD’000 HKD'000 HKD'000
Bt 5 THET FAxT FAET
(restated) (restated)
(L&) (B E5)
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment 7 E N Y 18 15,160 517 123
Film rights, films in progress and BYRE TEY
film royalty deposits REEREES 19 10,544 28,332 47,243
Goodwill EES 20 46,950 — —
Deposit paid for acquisition of W B Bt /&8 & B &Y
a subsidiary BEf%E 21 230,000 — —
302,654 28,849 47,366
CURRENT ASSETS mEBEE
Trade receivables B 5 e W R T 22 48,634 28,957 13,266
Prepayments, deposits and other FENFRIE - EHe2 Kk
receivables Emﬁuﬁz IR 23 40,074 3,585 1,772
Paid in advances [RENSERNEN 6,222 — —
Cash and cash equivalents ReMREEEY 24 148,168 1,456 19,752
243,098 33,998 34,790
CURRENT LIABILITIES mBER
Trade and bills payables BORNEREEE 25 28,044 11,764 2,045
Other payables and accruals H A ERTBR 3 &
J& &t R IR 40,128 3,982 3,457
Deposits received BEWES 17,943 9,771 5,759
Receipt in advances T8 I BR 3K 319 — —
Amount due to a related company JFEft 8B R B E 26 8,080 - -
Tax payable J& 1~ %5 18 4 — —
Obligations under finance leases B —F A 2 B AY
due within one year Bl & HH E AR 27 21 249 —
94,539 25,766 11,261
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBHEEFE 148,559 8,232 23,529

0=
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VAN j- Hjﬁ N
e R RS>
At 30 June 2010 R=ZF—ZFXA=+H
30 June 30 June 1 July
2010 2009 2008
—E—-FF —_TTHhAEFE —TTN\F
~A=+H ~A=+H +H—H
Notes HKD’000 HKD'000 HKD'000
B 5 FET FET FH&T
(restated) (restated)
(&) (&E)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HEERRHER
LIABILITIES 451,213 37,081 70,895
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY ERBDER
Obligations under finance leases —FRIANEE
due after one year & A E 27 — 21 —
NET ASSETS BEEFE 451,213 37,060 70,895
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXEGHE
Share capital R& 7 28 154,282 125,000 125,000
Reserves i 1% 296,931 (87,940) (54,105)
Equity attributable to owners of ISW/NCIEZF DN
the parent JE 15 #E 2 451,213 37,060 70,895

The consolidated financial statements on pages 29 to 119 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
22 September 2010 and are signed on its behalf by:

Li Hongrong

FRE

DIRECTOR # %

Zhou Zhibin
EES$
DIRECTOR # %
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
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For the year ended 30 June 2010 HE=-ZT—ZFXA=THIFE

R AR E B K>

Attributable to owners of the parent

BASBBAEN
Exchange
Share Share Capital translation Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve losses Total
B x BROkE SXMHE ERMHE RitiiE st
HKD'000 HKD’'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FE&T FET FET F#&T FET FET
(Note a)
(PFf 3% a)
At 1 July 2008 RZZEZNFLA—H 125,000 28,463 17,590 — (100,158) 70,895
Loss for the year and total FABAREZEEE
comprehensive loss Fak — — — — (33,835) (33,835)
At 30 June 2009 and 1 July R-ZEZTAFENA=+H
2009 F=ZZEZTAFLAR—H 125,000 28,463 17,590 — (133,993) 37,060
Loss for the year and total FABBEREZHEEBE
comprehensive loss | — — (57) (44,464) (44,521)
Issue shares upon settlement 33 4g 75 78 4k B T /8§ 2 &)
of consideration in respect MREEBBETRG
of acquisition of subsidiaries 3,632 50,848 — — — 54,480
Placement of shares & 17 B & 25,650 384,750 — — — 410,400
Transaction cost attributable B2 & & 7 FE 15 32 5 A A&
to placement of shares — (6,206) — — — (6,206)
At 30 June 2010 RZZE—ZTFA=1H 154,282 457,855 17,590 (57) (178,457) 451,213
Note: 5t
(a) It represents the followings: BREBHENATSE:

(i)

(ii)
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the difference between the aggregate nominal value of the share
capital of B&S Group Limited and its subsidiaries acquired by the
Company and the nominal value of the share capital of the
Company issued as consideration in exchange of HKD157,000; and

the surplus of HKD17,433,000 arising from allotment and issue of
15,000 shares of USD1 each of B&S Group Limited, credited as
fully paid to set off against the loans of HKD17,550,000 owing to
the previous executive directors pursuant to the group
reorganisation as set out in the Company’s prospectus dated 29

July 2002.

0]

(if)

AR FET Y EE B&S Group Limited Kz H Ff
BARKMBRASLEEEARREITIER
HE157,0008 TR EN R AEEMR &
ZEE R

& B 3 I ¥ 7715,0000% & AR E E13% 7T #)
B&S Group Limited & 1 ifl & & 2 & #
17,433,000 T (IR BARRAR =TT =
FtAZThBOBRERBAANE
BER AEROARARBMBIAEER
AT 017 2 = 2 B 17,550,000 70) °
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For the year ended 30 June 2010 HE=Z~ZFNA=1THIFE

2010 2009
—E-%F —TThF
HKD’'000 HKD'000
TFHET FAET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES HEXT
Loss before taxation B %4 Al 8 18 (44,454) (33,835)
Adjustments for: FEIEE
Finance costs A& B AN 8 18
Interest income FLE WA (1) (49)
Depreciation of property, plant Y- B R
and equipment R E 1,790 199
Impairment loss recognised in REEmRZRMEERE
respect of goodwill 5,895 —
Impairment losses recognised in EXMERERER
respect of film rights and films REBE
in progress 8,549 12,634
Impairment loss recognised in B E 5 E R FOE R
respect of trade receivables B E 1A 786 —
Impairment loss recognised in 7t EL b 8 Uk BR SR EE SR
respect of other receivables VERIEN SR 163 —
Amortisation of film rights B 57 b 5E 24,788 26,555
Operating cashflows before BES2HEZ
movements in working capital BEHERE (2,476) 5,522
Increase in trade receivables E 5 FE W BR FR I8 0 (6,163) (15,691)
Increase in prepayments, deposits ~ FANFRIE - e K E b fE UGB
and other receivables #n (36,577) (1,813)
Increase in paid in advances B 45 2K 1 0 (6,162) —
(Decrease) increase in trade and bills & 5 FER BR 3k K FEM Z 1%
payables ORL ) 1540 (11,428) 9,719
Increase in other payables and oAb M SR IE K JE BT 5K I8 18 A0
accruals 35,886 525
Increase in deposits received B W iz & 180 8,172 4,012
Increase in receipt in advances 2 U 2 SR8 0 270 —
Increase in amount due to a related F&{F— fd B8 i 2 &) 5 IE 18 0
company 8,049 —
CASH (USED IN) GENERATED FROM & (7% (FTA)MBR & F 5
OPERATIONS (10,429) 2,274
Income tax paid BB (6) —
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM HEXB(MAMBR&SFE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES (10,435) 2,274
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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For the year ended 30 June 2010 EZE—=

—ZRERNAZTHLEE

2010 2009
—E—-FF ZETNF
HKD’'000 HKD'000
FET FA T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BEED
Acquisition of subsidiaries (net of U B B 8 A B (AR H0BR P U B 3R &
cash and cash equivalent aquired) RIBE&EEY) 354 —
Purchase of property, plant and BEME BELREHEB
equipment (1,598) (105)
Purchase of film rights and BEETRELERY
film in progress (15,549) (20,278)
Interest received 24 F B 1 49
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING R EEFHFMARLFHA
ACTIVITIES (16,792) (20,334)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEH
Repayments of obligations under BEMEHERE
finance leases (249) (218)
Deposit paid for acquisition of ENKENEQRES
a subsidiary (230,000) —
Net proceeds from placement of B & IR 10 P 15 SR IE 88
shares 404,194 _
Interest paid AR (8) (18)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) RETHREERZ
FINANCING ACTIVITIES IReFE 173,937 (236)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN HERBEE£%EEYD
CASH AND CASH Whn(Rd)FE
EQUIVALENTS 146,710 (18,296)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS S$#HRE&RALEEY
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 1,456 19,752
Effect on foreign exchanges rate [EZE# B8 &
changes 2 _
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $&FE&RINELLEY
AT END OF THE YEAR 148,168 1,456
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF ReRReEEDERTN
CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS
Represented by: Bl
Bank balance and cash RITHE B RIRS 28,168 1,456
Short term deposit SRR 120,000 —
148,168 1,456
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 June 2010 HE=Z~ZFNA=1THIFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Neo Telemedia Limited (formerly known as Big Media
Group Limited) (the “Company”) (together with its
subsidiaries, collectively referred to as the “Group”) is
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on
the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM"”) of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are Unit 1303, 13/F, York
House, The Landmark, 15 Queen’s Road Central, Hong
Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HKD"). Other than those subsidiaries
established in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC")
whose functional currency is Renminbi (“RMB”), the
functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries are
HKD. The reason for selecting HKD as its presentation
currency is because the Company is a public company
listed on the GEM, where most of the investors are
located in Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and the principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are
engaged in sales and distribution of telecommunication
products, providing wireless services, production and sales
of videos and films, the licensing of video and copyrights/
film rights and artiste management.

~ A
TEFEEEEAERAAGIBXT
EREBBERATDIRAAFDHCER
HIMBAR s ARIAEE])IHER
SHBAMKIZHEERAR &
BTN BB ERXHER AT ([H
R RIER(TEI R £ e

AARIMEMBESEER T EEEMI
ABEBEFEREPISHEEMEZNR
ANIE131#1303F -

meapBmERABET(EITDZ -
BRAEARKMBE(HE] KD
MEARMINEEERSARBIAR
BN RRE R EM B RF I8
ERRET EEBETIEREZINE
EWREAZAABAEEER LM
DNBARE - MAIZERZHEHREERER
BE -

AEBZEIEXRBHAREER mMH
TEMBRRZEIEEBHEERD
HEMEMD  REERRY - RIER
HEXARER  RUZF RRE/
BEREARBATRE -

CTEEBEEEMAERAR 201058 >> 35



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A ﬁﬁ&#&%%lgﬁﬁi>>

For the year ended 30 June 2010 EZE—=

6 =

=THIEFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS")

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
new and revised standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations (“new and revised HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA").

HKFRSs (Amendments)  Improvements to HKFRSs issued
in 2008

Amendments to HKFRS 2,
HKAS 38 and HK(IFRIC) —
Int 9 & 16, as part of
Improvements to HKFRSs issued

in 2009

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial
Statements

HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs

HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements

HKAS 32 & 1 Puttable Financial Instruments and

(Amendments) Obligations Arising on

Liquidation

HKAS 39 (Amendment) Eligible Hedged Item

HKFRS 1 (Revised) First-time Adoption of HKFRS

HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27 Cost of an Investment in a
(Amendments) Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled

Entity or Associate

HKFRS 2 (Amendments) Vesting Conditions and
Cancellations

HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations

HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Improving Disclosures about
Financial Instruments
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For the year ended 30 June 2010 HE=Z %

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (Continued)

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments

HK(IFRIC) — Int 15 Agreements for the Construction
of Real Estate

HK(IFRIC) — Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a
Foreign Operation

HK(IFRIC) — Int 17 Distribution of Non-cash Assets
to Owners

HK(FRIC) — Int 18 Transfer of Assets from Customers

Except as described below, the adoption of the new and
revised HKFRSs had no material effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the current or prior
accounting periods.

Impact of new and revised HKFRSs

HKFRS 3 (Revised 2008) “Business Combinations”

HKFRS 1 (Revised 2008) has been adopted in the current
year (business combinations for which the acquisition date
is on or after beginning of the first annual period
beginning on or after 1 July 2009). Its adoption has
affected the accounting for business combinations in the
current year.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (Continuea)

Impact of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 3 (Revised 2008) “Business Combinations”
(Continued)

The impact of the adoption of HKFRS 3 (Revised 2008) has

been:
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changed the recognition and subsequent accounting
requirement for contingent consideration. Under the
previous version of the standard, contingent
consideration was recognised at the acquisition date
only if payment of the contingent consideration was
payable and it could be measured reliably; any
subsequent adjustments to the contingent
consideration were recognised against goodwill.
Under the revised standard, contingent consideration
is measured at fair value at the acquisition date;
subsequent adjustments to the consideration are
recognised against goodwill only to the extent that
they arise from better information about the fair
value at the acquisition date, and they occur within
the measurement period (the “Measurement Period”)
(@ maximum of 12 months from the acquisition date).
All other subsequent adjustments are recognised in
profit or loss; and

required that acquisition-related costs are accounted
for separately from the business combination,
generally leading to those costs being recognised as
expenses in profit or loss as incurred, whereas
previously they were accounted for as part of the
cost of acquisition.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (Continued)

Impact of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 3 (Revised 2008) “Business Combinations”
(Continued)

In the current year, these changes in policies have affected
the accounting for the acquisition of China Wimetro

TFENA=TRHLEFE

AN REBITEENER
HRABEMBEREER D2

A RGEETEEVBRERANZ
meE)

BB BEHREEREIR(—FE/NF
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RAFEE ZERRZEBZETI
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Communications Company Limited and its subsidiaries as BRARIZEGFIAENAT:
follows:
Consolidated statement of financial position GEMBRAE
2010
—2-%F
HKD’000
TER
Adjustment to the fair value of AU R EHBMZWEREZAFE
purchase consideration during
the Measurement Period 81,720
Reduction in goodwill recognised as £k 48 7& # 81 % S HERIE3HF(—TTN\FK
a result of adoption of HKFRS 3 & &) MR B
(Revised 2008) 81,720

HKFRS 3 (Revised 2008) has also required additional
disclosures in respect of the business combinations in the
year.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (Continuea)

New and revised HKFRSs affecting presentation and
disclosure only

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) Presentation of Financial Statements

HKAS 1
changes

(Revised 2007) has
(including

introduced terminology
revised titles for the financial
statements) and changes in the format and content of the

consolidated financial statements.

In addition, the adoption of HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) has
resulted in the presentation of the third consolidated
statement of financial position as at 1 July 2008 as the
items in its

Group has restated/reclassified certain

consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments

HKFRS 8, which replaces HKAS 14 Segment Reporting,
specifies how an entity should report information about its
operating segments, based on information about the
components of the entity that is available to the chief
operating decision maker for the purposes of allocating
resources to the segments and assessing their performance.
The standard also requires the disclosure of information
about the products and services provided by the segments,
the geographical areas in which the Group operates, and

revenue from the Group’s major customers.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. BRAMIREBITEENBE
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS ERAEEMBREEN D
("HKFRSS") (Continued)
New and revised HKFRSs affecting presentation and EREEIREB/BZMITREET]
disclosure only (Continued) EEMBHREEM )
Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments NEFHEHTAZ HE
(Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: (BEHBEHREERE7 2 T A :
Disclosures) w’EZIEET)
The amendments to HKFRS 7 expand the disclosures BEAVBREENETIR ZIEFTHE K
required in relation to fair value measurements in respect BENAFEFZE &M I AERATF
of financial instruments which are measured at fair value. BE2HBRTE  ZFEITNE
The amendments also expand and amend the disclosures ARETBEARBMERR 2B ER
required in relation to liquidity risk. iE °
The Group has not early applied the following new and REBWREERMNATEEMER
revised standards, amendments or interpretations that have REBMZFF R EIEFTER] - BFT A
been issued but are not yet effective. HRkE e
HKFRSs (Amendments)  Amendments to HKFRS 5 & 8, EERBREEN BEABREEAEKS
and HKAS 1, 7, 17, 18, 36 & CHES) % AREAGHER
39 as part of Improvements to F1-7-1718 361
HKFRSs 2009 3952 BT fERR
TENERMH2ERY
BREER 2 B
HKFRSs (Amendments)  Improvements to HKFRSs 20102 EERBREEN —T-ZEEEUEKRE
CHES) BRIz
HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures? EECHERNEUT BB ZRBEE R
(&E3)
HKAS 32 (Amendment) Classification of Rights Issues? EEOEAENE HRHE
(BEI )
HKFRS 1 (Amendments) Additional Exemptions for First- ERUBREEN BARBELENRSE
time Adopters’ FVR(BETA)
HKFRS 1 (Amendment) Limited Exemption from EADKREEN SREMERBEEEY
Comparative HKFRS 7 F15 (B K) BHmELENEITIRM
Disclosures for First-time HEREENTEZE
Adopters* 3§ 5h
HKFRS 2 (Amendments) Group cash-settled Share-based EEREREER gl%iﬂé%%Zﬂﬁ@%
Payment Transactions' F25 (BT AK) WRRZS
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (Continuea)

New and revised HKFRSs affecting presentation and
disclosure only (Continued)

Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments

(Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments®

K (IFRIC) — INT 14 Prepayment of a Minimum
(Amendment) Funding Requirement?

HK (IFRIC) — INT 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities
with Equity Instrument*

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 February 2010.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs affecting presentation and
disclosure only (Continued)

Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments
(Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments introduces new requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial assets
and will be effective from 1 January 2013, with earlier
application permitted. The standard requires all recognised
financial assets that are within the scope of HKAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement to be
measured at either amortised cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investments that (i) are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows
and (ii) have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost. All
other debt investments and equity investments are
measured at fair value. The application of HKFRS 9 might
affect the classification and measurement of the Group’s
financial assets.

The Directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the other new and revised standards,
amendments or interpretations will have no material impact
on the consolidated financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved
where the Company has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the effective date of
acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as
appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are identified
separately from the Group’s equity therein. The interests of
minority shareholders may be initially measured either at
fair value or at the minority interests’ proportionate share
of the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
The choice of measurement basis is made on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Subsequent to acquisition,
the carrying amount of minority interest is the amount of
those interests at initial recognition plus the minority
interests’ share of subsequent changes in equity. Total is
attributed to non-controlling interests even if this results in
the minority interest having a deficit balance.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

Business combinations

The acquisition of businesses is accounted for using the
purchase method. The cost of the acquisition is measured
at the date of
exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed,

at the aggregate of the fair values,

and equity instruments issued by the Group in exchange

for control of the acquiree, plus any costs directly
attributable to the business combination. The acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that
meet the conditions for recognition under HKFRS 3
Business Combinations are recognised at their fair values at

the acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset
and initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost
of the business combination over the Group's interest in
the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities recognised. If, after reassessment, the
Group's interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
exceeds the cost of the business combination, the excess is

recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree is
initially measured at the minority’s proportion of the net
fair value of the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
recognised.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost less any accumulated impairment losses and is
presented separately in the consolidated statement of
financial position.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units,
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition. A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment annually, and
whenever there is an indication that the unit may be
impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
financial year, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment before the end
of that financial year. When the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount of
the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first,
and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the
basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit
and loss. An impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed

in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is included in
the determination of the amount of profit or loss on
disposal.

Investment in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
statement of financial position at cost less any identified
impairment loss.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal course
of business, net of sales return, discounts and sales related
taxes.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the entity and specific
criteria have been met for each of the Group’s activities as
described below. The amount of revenue is not considered
to be reliably measureable until all contingencies relating
to the sale have been resolved. The Group bases its
estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the
type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics

of each arrangement.

(@)  Artiste management fee income is recognised when
services are provided.

(b)  Film exhibition income is recognised when the right
to receive payment is established.
() Income from

licensing and sub-licensing of

distribution rights over films is recognised upon
delivery of the per-recorded audio visual products
and the materials for video features including the
master tapes to the customers in accordance with

the terms of the contracts.

(d)  Revenue from sale of telecommunication products
are recognised when goods are delivered and title
has passed.

(e) Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future

life of the

financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on

cash receipts through the expected

initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for

Property, plant and equipment held for use

administrative purposes other than construction in progress
are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment (other than construction in
progress) over their estimated useful lives and after taking
into account of their estimated residual value, using the
straight-line method.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item) is included in the profit
or loss in the year in which the item is derecognised.

Film rights, films in progress and film royalty
deposits

(1) Film rights

Film rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Upon the release
of the per-recorded audio visual products and the
materials, film rights are amortised at rates calculated
to write off the costs in production to the expected
revenues from exhibition, reproduction and
distribution of audit visual products, the licensing of
video rights and other broadcast rights following
their release. Such rates are on a systematic basis,
with reference to the projected revenue and the
underlying licence periods, and are subject to annual

review by the Directors.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

Film rights, films in progress and film royalty

deposits (Continued)

(i)

(7if)

Films in progress

Films in progress are stated at cost less impairment
losses. Costs include all direct cost associated with
the production of films. Provisions are made against
costs which are in excess of future revenue expected
to be generated by these films. The balance of film
production costs not yet due at year end are
disclosed at commitments. The costs of films in
progress are transferred to film rights upon
completion.

Film royalty deposits

Licence fees paid in advance and by instalments
under licensing agreements for distribution of audio
visual products and sub-licensing of film titles, in
specified geographical areas and time periods, are
accounted for as film royalty deposits. The balance
payables under the licensing agreements is disclosed
as a commitment. Upon the release of the per-
recorded audio visual products and the materials, the
relevant portion of licence fees of purchased film
titles are charges to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on a systematic basis, with
reference to the projected revenue and the
underlying licence periods. Provision for impairment
loss is made against deposits to the extent that they
are not expected to generate any future revenue for
the Group.

In case where the Group is unable to exercise its
rights under a licensing agreement because the film
producer fails to complete the film, the Group writes
off the differences between the advances made and
the estimated recoverable amount from the film
producer.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Film rights, films in progress and film royalty
deposits (Continued)

(i) Film royalty deposits (Continued)

At the end of each reporting period, both internal
and external market information are considered to
assess whether there is any indication that film
rights, films in progress and film royalty deposits are
impaired. If any such indication exits, the carrying
amount of such assets is assessed and where
relevant, an impairment loss is recognised to reduce
the asset to its recoverable amount. Such impairment
losses are recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified
as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of
the Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease
or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease
payments.
included in the consolidated statement of financial position
as a finance lease obligation. Lease payments are
apportioned between finance lease obligation. Lease

The corresponding liability to the lessor is

payments are apportioned between finance charges and
reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
Finance charges are charged directly to profit or loss.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter
into an operating lease are recognised as a reduction of
rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the year in which they arise,
except for exchange differences arising on a monetary item
that forms part of the Company’s net investment in a
foreign operation, in which case, such exchange differences
in the
consolidated financial statements and will be reclassified

are recognised in other comprehensive income

from equity to profit or loss on disposal of foreign
operation. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation
of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in
profit or loss.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HKD) at the rate of exchange prevailing at
the end of the reporting period, and their income and
expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for
the year,

unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly

during the year, in which case, the exchange rates

prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, in other

if any, are recognised

comprehensive income and accumulated in equity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
on or after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and
liabilities of that foreign operation and retranslated at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange differences arising are recognised in the
translation reserve.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
year in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit scheme and
defined contribution retirement benefit plans are charged
as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax base used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary difference
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the

accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments
and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the year in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period. The
measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner
in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting
period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities. Deferred tax is recognised in to profit
or loss, except when it relates to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities
are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans and
receivables. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or

convention in the marketplace.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis.
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including trade receivables, deposits and
other receivables, cash and cash equivalents) are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment loss on financial assets below).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment loss on financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are
impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future
cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For all other financial

assets, objective evidence of

impairment could include:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or
— default or delinquency in interest or principal

payments; or

— it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.
For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables and other receivables, assets that are assessed
not to be impaired individually are subsequently assessed
for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase
in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past
the average credit period, observable changes in national
or local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.
For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when there
is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables and other receivables, where
the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When
receivables are considered

trade receivables and other

uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously

written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a

subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would

have been had the impairment not been recognised.
Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance of
into and the

the contractual arrangements entered

definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the group after deducting
all of its liabilities. The Group’s financial liabilities comprise
other financial liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments through the expected life of the
financial liability, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and bills payables,
other payables and accruals, amount due to a related

company and obligations under finance leases are

subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the

effective interest method.
Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire, or the financial
assets are transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses on tangible assets other than
goodwill (see the accounting policies in respect of
goodwill above)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. If
the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss
is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying

estimate of its recoverable amount,
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

Neo Telemedia Limited Annual Report 2010

the party, directly or indirectly through one or more

intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by, or is
under common control with, the Group; (ii) has an
interest in the Group that gives it significant
influence over the Group; or (iii) has joint control

over the Group;

the party is an associate;

the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

the party is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or its parent;

the party is a close member of the family of any
individual referred to in (a) or (d);

the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by or for which
significant voting power in such entity resides with,
directly or indirectly, any individual referred to in (d)
or (e); or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of the employees of the Group, or of any
entity that is a related party of the Group.

EXEHBR
MEAL

WEMALFA

AT BIR R

SEMEEAL:

(a

&%Aiﬁ&&ﬁ&L — &
SZERNA:OEHARER -
W$%lTﬂ%ﬁ$§le
RZES (R AEEES #E=
FHHANEEBEULEXFE:
(i) A A B B FE S

BAE AL B SRR

ZBANLTRAREGER:

ZBANLTDASELEFG AT
MEBEEAR:

% B AL bt (a) 3 (d) RO 1E 1A
18 Bl A £ #5138

% B AL 0k ti(d) s (e) &Y 1 Al
AT EZRIEEES - WTW
ﬂiﬁék%@ﬂiiﬁ
BHER: X

ZBRALTDRAEESB AR
ERAEALTHNENERNES
A% N T RR A B IR AR B AH &I




4.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NAN
N

B R R MR > >

For the year ended 30 June 2010 HE=Z~ZFNA=1THIFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in Note 3, the Directors of the Company are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimated and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the year in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainly at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Impairment loss recognised in respect of film rights,
films in progress and film royalty deposits

Impairment assessment on film rights, films in progress and
film royalty deposits are performed at the end of each
reporting period with reference to both internal and
external market information, for example, sales forecast
based on expected popularity of the respective titles, the
expected production, sales and distribution costs to be
reviewed to conclude the sale and the general economic
condition of the relevant markets. As at 30 June 2010, the
carrying value of film rights, films in progress and film
royalty deposits amounted to approximately HKD10,544,000
(2009: HKD28,332,000). Changes in assumptions used in
this assessment, including the forecasted revenue, may

result in additional provision being made in the

consolidated financial statements.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value-in use of the cash-generate units
to which goodwill has been allocated. The value-in-use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash flow expected to
arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value. Where the
actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise. Details of impairment testing on

goodwill are set out in Note 20.
Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several

jurisdictions. Significant estimate are required in

determining the provision for income taxes. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in the year in which such determination is

made.

As at 30 June 2010, the Group had unused tax losses of
approximately HKD55,086,000 (2009: HKD26,116,000)
available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax
asset in relation to unused tax losses has been recognised
in the Group's consolidated statement of financial position
due to the unpredictability of future profits streams. In
case where there are future profits generated to utilise the
tax losses, a material deferred tax asset may arise, which
would be recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income for the year in which such profits
are recorded.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. EXEAER
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in AEEEAEE CEERAREETE
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern BERELEXEE U FARETS

fEM s - RBRRBRE KRR

while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

AEEZEANGEBEREBBER
MEUEBE RS MRS FEM R
KRB 2 BB ANELER (EEIE?%TT
%$&Fﬁ1ﬁﬂﬂﬁk)°$"72§$m

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt which
includes cash and cash equivalents as disclosed in Note 24
and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital and reserves. The Directors

of the Company review the capital structure on a regular BETEREE - ERILBE 2 — &
basis. As a part of this review, the Directors of the T;J CARFICEFTEREARAZKAER
Company consider the cost of capital and the associated iR pEN T I[T?RHXL?SFI@JM%H%&$

E@Zézﬁ A AEEZEER
BEHEES TE -

risks, and take appropriate actions to adjust the Group's
capital structure. The overall strategy of the Group
remained unchanged from prior periods.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS EMIR
Categories of financial instruments SRTHEER
2010 2009
—E—-FF —EENF
HKD’000 HKD'000
FHT FAETT
Financial assets EHEE
Loan and receivables (including B3 K e AR X
cash and cash equivalents) (BERELKBESFED)
Trade receivables E 5 AR 48,634 28,957
Deposits and other receivables e & E A rINGRIE 12,908 1,657
Cash and cash equivalents RekREeFEEYD 148,168 1,456
209,710 32,070
Financial liabilities CRBE
Other financial liabilities measured X ¥ $5 ik N5+ 8 >
at amortised cost Hib g aE
Trade and bills payables BHRNERRENERE 28,044 11,764
Other payables and accruals E & < BR 3R Ik FE FH SR IE 40,128 3,982
Amount due to a related FE B E QR R
company 8,080 —
Obligations under finance leases B & TS AR E 21 270
76,273 16,016
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE
AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade

receivables, deposits and other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents, trade and bills payables, other payables and
accruals, amount due to a related company and obligations
under finance leases are disclosed in respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented on timely and effective manner.

Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency
sales and purchases, which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk. Approximately 52% (2009: 66%) of the
Group's sales for the year ended 30 June 2010 are
denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the group entity making the sale, whilst almost
7% (2009: Nil) of costs are denominated in currencies

other than the group entity’s functional currency.

1.
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WA -

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency REERE AREFERIINEFEZE
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at BKEERBEKABENREEBENT
the reporting date are as follows:
2010 2009
—E-%F ZEThF
HKD’000 HKD'000
THET FHET
Assets 43 18,054 25,101
Liabilities Bf& — (9,154)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE
AND POLICIES (continued)

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging

significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.
Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the currency of RMB and
Taiwan dollar (“TWD").

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%
increase and decrease in HKD against the relevant foreign
currencies. 5% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting
foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitively analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the end of the reporting period for a 5%
change in foreign currency rates. A positive number below
indicates an decrease in post-tax loss where HKD
strengthen 5% against the relevant currency. For a 5%
weakening of HKD against the relevant currency, there
would be an equal and opposite impact on the loss, and
the balances below would be negative. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for the year ended 30 June

20009.

1.
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2010 2009

—E—-FF —ETRF

HKD’000 HKD'000

FER FHET

Impact on loss for the year FANBEEZE 900 797

This is mainly attributable to the exposure to outstanding
trade receivables, deposits and other receivables, cash and
cash equivalents, trade and bill payables and amount due
to a related company denominated in RMB and TWD at
the end of reporting period.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE
AND POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk

The interest income is derived from the Group's current
and fixed deposit that carrying interest at the respective
banking deposit rate of the banks located in the PRC and
Hong Kong.

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to the obligations under finance leases carried at
fixed rates. The Group currently does not have an interest
management monitors
interest exposure and will consider other necessary actions

rate hedging policy. However,
when significant interest rate exposure is anticipated.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
related to bank balances carried at prevailing market rate.
However, such exposure is minimal to the Group as the
bank balances are all

short-term in nature and no

sensitivity to interest rate risk is presented.

The Group's exposure to interest rates on financial liabilities
is detailed in the liquidity tables of this note. The Group
cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the
fluctuation of the base lending rate published by the
People’s Bank of China and the Hong Kong Interbank
Offered Rate.

Credit risk

As at 30 June 2010, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group
due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

recoverable amount of each
individual trade and other receivables at the end of the
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment losses

The Group reviews the

are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
Directors of the Company consider that the Group’s credit

risk is significantly reduced.

Neo Telemedia Limited Annual Report 2010
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE
AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in the PRC including Hong Kong. As at
30 June 2010, the Group has certain concentration of
risk as 50% (2009: 57%) of the total
receivables was due from the Group’s largest customer.

credit trade

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies and authorised banks
in the PRC with high-credit ratings.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group

monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group's operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities
based on the agreed repayment terms. The table has been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay. The table includes both
To the extent that

interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount

interest and principal cash flows.

is derived from interest rate curve at the end of the
reporting period.

1.

SHEAREEBERB R

EERR

AEEZEFEERR R ERTE
FEREBFEBERE) - RZT—
TEXNAZHH AEERLAEE Y
BAE—RPZESEREREEZ
EFEERK A50% (CEENF:
57%) e

ARSGHTREREEFREEEE
MABEERSHNEREFENRITRPE
AEBEHFRORERT  BHAKE
MBESZEERRAR -

MENE & B

EEERBECRRNBRES  AK
EeERItAREERERREND
RehkReFEEBY RAKHENEE
RHESIREBSRNBOTE -

TR AP BRI 195 E B9 R AR R
AEBRTHANIBAHR ZIETE
TWMABME - ZRDBAKEAMNKD
RPAMYNERMEBEFHNRMIRE
EREREERH - ZRHITHE
RAZBRERE - EFMBERLZEHF
RABWMAET  RUBRSBEDEAR
EHROMERHEFH -

PEHFESEEAERAT 20105 ®

>> 67



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A ﬁﬁ&#&%%lgﬁﬁi>>

For the year ended 30 June 2010 HZ— =tTHLFE

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE 7. tHMEABEEERRBR @
AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REELERZ)
Liquidity tables B E & F
More than Total
Within 1 year 1 year but less undiscounted Carrying
or on demand  than 2 years cash flow  amounts
— R BE—F KBHZ
EEX BORWE BERELHE AR E
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
THET FiET FTiET THET
At 30 June 2010 R-Z¥-FE£7A=+H
Non-derivative financial liabilities FE#TE&RMEE
Trade and bills payables BEHRNERRENER 28,044 — 28,044 28,044
Other payables and accruals HAbRER R R AR 40,128 — 40,128 40,128
Amount due to a related company ERBEERARNRE 8,080 — 8,080 8,080
Obligations under finance leases BAMEAE 22 — 22 21
76,274 — 76,274 76,273
At 30 June 2009 RZFFAEFAZTH
Non-derivative financial liabilities F#TE&RMEE
Trade and bills payables EIRNERRERER 11,764 — 11,764 11,764
Other payables and accruals HAbRER R B RSN IE 3,982 — 3,982 3,982
Obligations under finance leases BAMEAE 256 22 278 270
16,002 22 16,024 16,016

s &=
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FAIR VALUE

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined as follows:

— the fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities with standard terms and conditions and
traded in active liquid markets are determined with
reference to quoted market bid prices and ask prices
respectively; and

—  the fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities (excluding derivative instruments) is
determined in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted cash flow
analysis using prices from observable current market
transactions and dealer quotes for similar instruments.

The Directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate to their fair value due to their short-term
maturities.

The Directors of the Company also consider that their fair
value of the long-term portion of liabilities approximately
to their carrying amount as they are carried at amortised
cost using an effective interest rate method.
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9. TURNOVER AND OTHER INCOME 9. EXBRAMUAN
Turnover represents the net amounts received and EHEBERAAEERMINSEFPEEED
receivable for goods sold or services provided by the NIRRT 2 B0 & e SR IEF R
Group to outside customers, net of sales return, discounts BRINBREHEDR - TN RHEREB
and sales related taxes. I8 o
An analysis of the Group’s turnover and other income for REBBOFARNERRREMKA DN
the year are as follows: [N
2010 2009
—E—FF —EENF
HKD’000 HKD'000
TET FAT
Turnover B
Film exhibition, film rights BENE  RERERSE
licensing and sub-licensing TIRIEE 33,796 44,268
Income from artiste management 23 AEIEWA 5,298 4,126
Sales of telecommunication HESMEMRRHERS
products and providing wireless Pk %%
services 5,710 —
44,804 48,394
Other income HAn g A
Bank interest income RITF B A 1 49
Exchange gain, net &5 - JF 5 2 —
Commission income mal A 1,376 —
Sundry income MIERA 936 511
2,315 560

0=
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Se BRI S >

For the year ended 30 June 2010 HE=Z~ZFNA=1THIFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group had adopted HKFRS 8 Operating Segments
with effect from 1 July 2009. HKFRS 8 is a disclosure
standard that requires operating segments to be identified
on the basis of internal reports about components of the
Group that are regularly reviewed by the chief operating
decision maker for the purpose of allocating resources to
segments and assessing their performance. In contrast, the
(HKAS
identify two sets of segments

predecessor Standard 14, Segment Reporting)
required an entity to
returns

(business and geographical) using a risks and

approach.

The chief operating decision maker, the Company’s Chief
Officer,
monthly consolidated financial statements prepared in

Executive Officer and Chief Financial reviewed
accordance with HKFRSs for the purpose of allocating
resources and assessment of the Group's performance.
in adoption of HKFRS 8
Segments”, the Company considered that there are three

Accordingly, “Operating
reportable operating segments, which are as follows:

—  Film exhibition, film rights licensing and sub-licensing

—  Artiste management

—  Sales of telecommunication products and providing
wireless services

10.

SEEH

AEBERMBE_ZTTNLFLA—H
A 2 EBWEREERFHRA
ELE BRYBHRELERESRS
—IEWBEER  BRUTELERE
ERDBERDEREKRBENEME
HEMNERASESEEM AR
SERERLEN B ZEE - A
RER(EB G ERFE4R 78
EH)NHRETERBRAER MO K
EERAMAS B AIEB LR ) o

TERERRE(RRAITHRAER R
BERVBE)EHREZTEMH RS
HARENBAGAMBEHRE - Bt
DEERMFRAEERZRE o Bt
RERB AR B HRELAFESREE
DEARFARBRBE=ZBAIZRE

EHEMT

— EBE¥HBR BHMRERETR

1
— BAEE

— HEEAEMRREHRERRSE
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2

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

=

(a)

Neo Telemedia Limited Annual Report 2010

10. nE&E® &)

Segment revenues and results () HEBEWRRELSR
The following is an analysis of the Group’s turnover AEBERAZRDBECEERE
and results by reportable segments: REZEITOT:
For the year ended 30 June BENA=FHILFE
Sales of
Film exhibition, telecommunication
film rights licensing and products and providing
sub-licensing wireless services
EHM - RER Artiste management HEEHERR Consolidated
BRETHE BAER R\ SR G8
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
ZE-%FF —TTHNF ZB-%BF —TTHF ZB-BF _TTHNF ZB-BF —TTNF
HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000
FHET FTER FTHET TET TERT FTET FHET TER
Turnover L] 33,796 44,268 5,298 4,126 5,710 — 44,804 48,394
Segment results NEER (22,116) (24,479 2,540 (1,280) (9,195) — (28771)  (25759)
Interest income FEBA 1 49
Unallocated corporate & 2 B2 2 & KA
income 2,314 511
Unallocated corporate K B2 ARIF X
expenses (17,990) (8,618)
Finance costs BEKA (8) (18)
Loss before taxation R i A1 18 (44,454) (33,835)
Income tax expenses P15 BiF % (10) -
Loss for the year FREE (44,464) (33,835)
The accounting policies of the reportable segments A2W|MoF o BHEEARE
are the same as the Group's accounting policies. & # BEAER - DEEEE
Segment results represent the results earned by each BEDBERADEZMBYE A

segment without allocation of interest income,

central administration costs, Directors’ emoluments,
impairment loss recognised in respect of goodwill
and finance costs. This is the measure reported to
the chief operating decision maker for the purposes

of resource allocation and performance assessment.

TRITHER EFME B

BERRZHEERLEEK
RFTEREN Z 48 o WRETI5L

BRAMBELKRBFGEMAEE
RERREETERZNE -




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B R R MR S>>

For the year ended 30 June 2010 HE=Z~ZFNA=1THIFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(b)

)

0. HEEHR =)

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets
and liabilities by reportable segments:

At 30 June

Film exhibition,
film rights licensing and

(b)

SEAERER

AEBRAZKDIBZEER
BELHTMT:

RANH=1+H

Sales of
telecommunication
products and
providing wireless

sub-licensing services
EXRB - RHER Artiste management HEEMERR Consolidated
BREMEE BA\EE REEQ R F&
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
“E-%F —TTHNF ZB-%F —TTNF ZB-%BE -“TTNF ZB-FF —TTNF
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD’000 HKD'000 HKD’000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
TER FTEL TERT TET TERT TERT TER FTEL
Segment assets NEEE 44,696 49,366 19,106 11,940 26,925 — 90,727 61,306
Unallocated corporate KA B ARIE E
assets 455,025 1,541
Total assets HESE 545,752 62,847
Segment liabilities NHEE 38,654 17,732 2,555 399 33,510 — 74,719 18,131
Unallocated corporate KA B AR & &
liabilities 19,820 7,656

Total liabilities BEEE

94,539 25,787

For the purpose of monitoring segment performances
and allocating resources between segments:

— all assets other than unallocated assets (mainly
comprising deposit paid for acquisition of a
subsidiary, goodwill and cash and cash
equivalents) are allocated to reportable
segments; and

— all liabilities other than unallocated liabilities
(mainly comprising other payables and accruals
and deposits received) are allocated to
reportable segments.

PEHFESEEAERAT 20105 ®
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For the year ended 30 June 2010 #E_—T—Z4F

10.

(c) Other segment information

For the year ended 30 June

=+HIEFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

10. PE&EH @2

(c)

Amounts included in the measure of segment profit

or loss or segment assets:

Film exhibition,
film rights licensing and

Sales of
telecommunication
products and
providing wireless

Hiv 5 EEH

BENH=FHIFE

AAEDEES

BEZHE:

xR EERM

sub-licensing services
EXHE RHR Artiste management HEEHERR Unallocated Consolidated
BREVEE EAEE RUEEGRT ARPE oy
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
—B-%% —TINF ZB-%F —TTHNEF CZ%-%BF “TTHhE CZB-%&F _TINF CZB-%F —ITTh%
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
THET FhET THET FET THET FhET THET FET THET FET
Other segment HitpBER:
information:
Capital expenditure BAEX 6 44 — 549 1,592 — — — 1,598 593
Depreciation of property, #1% * BE &
plant and equipment  REFE 59 59 140 140 1,591 - — — 1,790 199
Amortisation of film  EHIREHH
rights 24,788 26,555 — — — — — — 24,788 26,555
Impairment loss REERAL
recognised in HERE
respect of goodwill — — — — — — 5,895 — 5,895 —
Impairment loss REYMER
recognised in TR
respect of film BAZRE
rights and films in E#
progress 8,549 12,634 — — — — — — 8,549 12,634
Impairment loss HEHEKRT
recognised in BEHRZ
respect of trade HERS
receivables - — - — 786 — - — 786 —
Impairment loss tE R
recognised in ERRZ
respect of other HERSB
receivables — — — — 163 — — — 163 —

=
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For the year ended 30 June 2010 HE=Z~ZFNA=1THIFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
(o)

10. ﬁ*ﬁé*‘l’\/%ﬂ/
(0 HipESEHR )

Other segment information (Continued)

EHRHTIBELERRER

Amount regularly provided to the chief operating

decision maker but not included in the measure of

7[_ 73_/\ A\ ﬁ—g TE

/'\A-Eéﬁ

segment profit or loss or segment assets: T ERBEE
Sales of
Film exhibition, telecommunication
film rights products and
licensing and providing wireless
sub-licensing services
EE MM BHER Artiste management HEEHERR Unallocated Consolidated
EREVME YN REEGRE AR oy
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
—¥-%E _TTNE Z¥-%E _TENF ZB-%EF "TTNF ZB-%EFE _TINF Z¥-%E _TINF
HKD’000 HKD'000 HKD’000 HKD'000 HKD’000 HKD'000 HKD’000 HKD'000 HKD’000 HKD'000
TEL FET TEL FET TEL FET TEL FET TEL FET
Interest income RSN — - — - — - 1 49 1 49
Finance costs BERK — — — — — - 8 18 8 18
Information about major customers FEEFRZEAH

Turnover from customers of the corresponding years

REBFEGASEBEXRTERB

contributing over 10% of the total turnover of the Group 0% EPZEEBEWT:
was as follow:

2010 2009
—E—FF —ETAF
HKD’'000 HKD'000
TFi# T FAT
'Customer A (Note) "BEA K ) — 7,472
1Customer B (Note) "2EB(Hf i) — 19,988
'Customer C (Note) "BEC(HaE) 4,944 —
2Customer D (Note) 2Z2ED (B i) 5,643 —
10,587 27,460

PEHFESEEAERAT 20105 ®
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For the year ended 30 June 2010 #ZE—=

=+HIEFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

6 =

10.

Information about major customers (Continued)

! Turnover from film exhibition, film rights licensing and sub-licensing

2 Turnover from sales of telecommunication products and providing

wireless services

SEEE )
TEERZEH)

TEBEMM BEHEREEEEREN
= X

KEHEERERRRBRHERRBHE
S

Note: As the corresponding turnover for the year ended 30 June 2010 or fief: BRBE_F-FTFR_FTTAFA
2009 did not contribute over 10% of the total sales of the Group AZ+tRLEFENFHEXEEAKE
for that year, the corresponding turnover has not disclosed. REERNBHEETHEEI0% B &

REAMEEE -

Geographical information WmEEH

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong and the ARBREHMHBURNBTBRTE - K

PRC. The Group’s revenue from external customers by KBRS D2 KB EEF WK

geographical location is detailed below: FEmT

Turnover by geographical market W T & R

2010 2009
—E—-FF —EENF
HKD’000 HKD'000
FTERT THETT

Hong Kong B 21,427 16,304

The PRC (excluding Hong Kong) (MR REEE) 19,012 25,586

Asia (excluding Hong Kong and DM BEEEBRFEH)

the PRC) 2,978 4,383

Others H At 1,387 2,121

44,804 48,394
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For the year ended 30 June 2010 HE=Z~F

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

1.

Geographical information (Continued)

Turnover by geographical market (Continued)

The Group’s non-current assets, other than film rights,
films in progress and film royalty deposits, goodwill and

deposit paid for acquisition of a subsidiary, by geographical

10.

*EEH#)
WEEE )

WS &R (E)

AEBZIERBEE(
¥R EXmERSE

a8 B w RS>

TFENA=TRHLEFE

BERRE -

kU

— M ERRNC MR RN R

location are detailed below: RE D ZFBOT
2010 2009
—E-FF —ZTTAF
HKD’000 HKD'000
THET FAET
Hong Kong BB 323 517
The PRC (excluding Hong Kong) FER(TRERE) 14,837 —
15,160 517
FINANCE COSTS 1. BERE
2010 2009
—E—-FF ZEENF
HKD’000 HKD'000
TET FAT
Interest expenses on: MERAZ:
— obligations under finance leases — @& & & & 8 18

TEFEEEBEERAIA 20109 K
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For the year ended 30 June 2010 HZ— =tTHLFE
12. INCOME TAX EXPENSES 12. FiRHEX
2010 2009
—g-%F -—TTAF
HKD’000 HKD'000
THET FAT
Current tax B ER 4 18
— Hong Kong Profits Tax — BBNER 4 —
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax — PRI ERER 6 —
10 —
(@) Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the (@ BEMEHR W EFENGE

s &=

estimated assessable profit for both years.

Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided in the
consolidated financial statements as the Group has
no assessable profits for the year ended 30 June

2009.

Neo Telemedia Limited Annual Report 2010
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VALY
For the year ended 30 June 2010 HE=Z~ZFNA=1THIFE
12. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continved) 2. BHEX%#)
Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (b)y 1R TJ% HE RSB E(EE
(the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of SHZEDRE T EFREREE

the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries are

25% from 1 January 2008 onwards.

The income tax expenses for the year can be

reconciled to the

loss before taxation per the

consolidated statement of comprehensive income as

iicH 1|7t< B

i?\]ﬁﬁ

B-ZEZTN\F—HA—H
B FEHNBRARIZHER
25% °

BH X EAR G 20K

mERZBHAIEEREROT

follows:

2010 2009

—E-FF —ZTThHF

HKD’000 HKD'000

TFHET AT

Loss before taxation B i 5 @5 48 (44,454) (33,835)
Tax calculated at rates applicable to BB B RERE R S A
profits in the respective tax BACZHEFEZRMIEA

jurisdiction concerned (8,149) (5,583)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible — HL & 75 M &~ A #0BR F 2

for tax purposes 2GR E 3,424 1,405
Tax effect of income not taxable for LA M & B AR U A

tax purposes B RE — 3)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not AERSABAZHIBES

recognised BeBBeE 5,074 4,224
Tax effect of prior tax losses utilised HRAFEBBBETHIEE

this year BeBBeE (291) —
Tax effect of deductible temporary RERAHBEREZE

differences not recognised ik (48) (43)

Income tax expenses PR #EX 10 —

Details of deferred taxation are set out in Note 30. EERIE 2 FF IS A 3530 o

PEHFESEEAERAT 20105 ®
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For the year ended 30 June 2010 EZE— =+HIEFE
13. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 13. EXEHE
2010 2009
—F—-FF —ZTThF
HKD’000 HKD'000
TH&ET FAET
Loss for the year has been arrived at after FAEED K :
charging:
Staff costs, including Directors’ BINE BEEFEHE
remuneration
— Salaries, wages and other benefits — He ITEREAMER 5,219 4,374
— Retirement benefit scheme contributions — & k18 Fll 5+ £ £ 3 78 74
Total staff costs B8 TR 5,297 4,448
Depreciation of property, plant and ME BEREREITE
equipment 1,790 199
Amortisation of film rights B R RE 8 24,788 26,555
Impairment loss recognised in respect of — BLE E MR Z B EE B
goodwill 5,895 —
Impairment loss recognised in respect of FEFZWRERER T FER
film rights and films in progress 2 B EE 8,549 12,634
Impairment loss recognised in respect of & 5 & I B FAE R 2 RE
trade receivables & 8 786 —
Impairment loss recognised in respect of Bt E b fE UK BR FNFE R 2 B (E
other receivables [ 163 —
Auditor’s remuneration % AT BN & 480 319
Operating lease rentals for rented premises HHYW ¥ 2 K& HEH & 6,642 4,789

0=
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For the year ended 30 June 2010 HE =% ~%

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic loss per share for the year
ended 30 June 2010 is based on the consolidated loss for
the year attributable to the owners of the parent of
approximately HKD44,464,000 (2009: HKD33,835,000) and
the weighted average number of approximately
13,097,028,000 shares (2009: 12,500,000,000 shares) in
issue during the year.

No diluted loss per share is presented for the years ended
30 June 2010 and 30 June 2009 as there was no diluted
potential ordinary share outstanding.

ZENAZTRLEFE

14. BREBE

HE=ZF—ZFA-FTHLEEZ
Ah%$%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ#Aﬂ%ﬁAﬂ
HEEEEEIB 444,464,000 70 (=
T T A4 33,835,000 L) M FARE
BATR M Z M EF Y &Y
13,097,028,000f% (= & T 1 £F:
12,500,000,0000% ) 5T &

RN EEE R RTTEBEEE R
BHE_Z-—ZTFAA=1THRZ-ZZE
NEXB=FTBLFETEZSER
BEESE -
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For the year ended 30 June 2010 #ZE—=

15.

=

=+HIEFE

STAFF COSTS (EXCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS)

15. EIRK(REBEEENL)

2010 2009
—E—FF —EThEF
HKD’000 HKD'000
FET T 7T
Salaries, wages and other benefits & ~ T&E Rk E & F| 4,067 1,961
Retirement benefit scheme RKAR B 5T &I 4%
contributions 64 53
4,131 2,014
Hong Kong ik
The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme AEEZHEEEELHEAE LA

(‘the  MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for its Hong Kong
employees. The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution
retirement plan administered by independent trustees,
Under the MPF scheme, each of the Group companies (the
“employer”) in Hong Kong and its employees makes
monthly contribution to the scheme a 5% of the
employee’s earning as defined under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Legislation. The contributions from each of
the employer and employees are subject to a cap of
HKD1,000 per month.

The PRC, other than Hong Kong

As stipulated by rules and regulations in the PRC, the
Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are required to contribute
to a state-sponsored retirement plan for all its employees.
The state-sponsored retirement plan is responsible for the
entire pension obligations payable to all retired employees.
Under the state-sponsored retirement plan, the Group has
no further obligations for the actual pension payments or
post-retirement benefits beyond the annual contributions.

Neo Telemedia Limited Annual Report 2010
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For the year ended 30 June 2010 HE=Z~ZFNA=1THIFE

16. DIRECTORS' AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

6. EEREEMNE

(a) Directors’ emoluments () EEs
The emoluments paid or payable to each of 7 (2009: B ENTFIR(ZEZENF:
8) Directors were as follows: 8E)EFEZHMeWT:
2010 2009
—E-%5 ZETNF
Salaries, Retirement Salaries,  Retirement
wages and benefits wages and benefits
other scheme other scheme
Names of Directors Fees benefits contributions Total Fees benefits contributions Total
e I8 BHKEH e IE  BRAKEMN
EEpa He REMEBEF PRI @zt wE REMEN  FHEHEX @t
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000  HKD'000
TER T#ET TERXT TER FTET FTET FTHET FTET
Executive Directors: BITEE:
Mr. Li Hongrong ENCL — — — — — — — —
Mr. Zhou Zhibin (Note a) B &, 5 4 (M i a) — — — — — — — —
Mr. Theo Ede (Note b) Theo Ede %t 4 (Fff 5t b) 69 — 2 7 — — — —
Mr. Ou Bai (Note b) B 2 A (B 7 b) — — — — — — — —
Mr. Tong Hing Chi (Note ) B S 4 (M 3t 100 — — 100 100 — — 100
Dr. Yap, Allan (Note d) Yap, Allanf& £ (¥} 5 d) 33 - = 33 100 — — 100
Mr. Zhuo Wu (Note e) ERFEE(MiTe) 50 810 12 872 — 805 12 817
Mr. Li Kuo Hsing (Note f) Edeil ) — — — — 1,000 — — 1,000
Mr. Chan Kwok Sun, Dennis BR BT 5 A (M st g)
(Note g) = = = — — 318 9 327
Independent non-executive ~ BIEHTES:
Directors:
Ms. Chen Xiao Rong (Note i) B B 45 2x £ (it 3E) — — — — — — — —
Mr. Hu Yangjun (Note b) 15 18 5 & (P 3Eb) — — — — — — — —
Mr. Lam Kin Kau, Mark WEREE 50 — — 50 50 — — 50
Mr. Law Kwok Leung (Note h) ZERR % £ (M 5Eh) 20 — — 20 20 — — 20
Mr. Fung Wing Keung (Note h) k38 5 A (I 5Eh) 20 - — 20 20 — - 20
342 810 14 1,166 1,290 1,123 21 2,434
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For the year ended 30 June 2010 HZ— =tTHLFE

16. DIRECTORS' AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

(@) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Notes:

a. Appointed on 2 November 2009
b. Appointed on 13 May 2010

C. Resigned on 3 June 2010

d. Resigned on 20 July 2009

e. Resigned on 16 July 2010

f. Resigned on 26 June 2008

g. Resigned on 28 March 2009

h. Resigned on 24 June 2010

i Resigned on 9 September 2010
No Director waived or agreed to waive any

emoluments in respect of two years ended 30 June
2010 and 20009.

=

16. EEREEME »

(a)

EEmNe )

B &L

a. RIZEZNF+—-A-_REZE
b. RZZE—ZFRAT=BEZEE
c. RIE-ZFXA=ZBEE

d. RIZEZEAFLA-THEE

™
5.4

T-ZEFLA+TRARE

f. ey

“H!

ENFRAZTREERE

g. RZZEZANF=ZR -+ N\HEE

e

—TFERAZTHEAEE

i. R-FE-ZFNLANARIE

BEEFHEAAERERE
F—FER-FTAENA=
+ALAEFEZEAMS -
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For the year ended 30 June 2010 HE =% ~%

a0 %R RKE>>

ZENAZTRLEFE

6. EEREEME 2

(Continued)
(b) Senior management emoluments (b) SREEENZ
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, hEasEaHFMENALTR  —%
one (2009: two) was Director of the Company whose —EENF MAB)BALTE
emolument is set out in the above. The emoluments T OEEzHFHER L@ -
of the remaining four (2009: three) highest paid EHUA(ZZETNF - =ZR)F
individuals for the year were as follows: ExadMENALTZHBM®M
T
2010 2009
—E-FF —ETNF
HKD’'000 HKD’000
FET THET
Salaries, wages and other benefits #r & - TE R H & F 430 973
Retirement benefits scheme R RAE R &8 30
contributions 9 36
439 1,009
The emoluments were within the following bands: BEZHFWAFTATEHEN
2010 2009
—E—-FF —ETNF
Number of Number of
individual individual
B ALTEE R AL &8
Nil to HKD1,000,000 21,000,000/ 7T 4 3
() No emolument have been paid by the Group to the (0 BE_Z—ZFR-ZEZTNF

Directors of the Company or the five highest paid

individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining

the Group, or as compensation for loss of office
during the two years ended 30 June 2010 and 2009.

TEHEFEEARLA 2010F &

/\H:—i—EIJtﬁlifIiE/HHFaEJ R
SEBERNARRESIOA
&= H MRS B & AR
BEMARER  HMAKXE
EEERRSHIERBERME
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For the year ended 30 June 2010 HZ— =tTHLFE
n
17. DIVIDENDS 17. B2
No dividend was paid or proposed for the year ended 30 HE-_ZT—ZSFA=1+TRHLFENL
June 2010 nor has any dividend been proposed since the EIRASEIRRE - B EBHARET
end of reporting period (2009: Nil). BREEARE(ZZEZNF E) -
T =
18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. V¥ -BER®RE
Leasehold Office  Furniture and Plant and
improvements equipment fixtures machinery Motor  Construction
HENXE BWAE R R BER  vehicles in progress Total
K& R RE e RE EEIR st
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000  HKD'000 HKD'000  HKD'000
TET FET FHET FTET FTET FET FET
cosT BAE
At 1 July 2008 HW-ZE/\FLA—H 75 166 190 327 — — 758
Additions RE — 50 — — 543 — 593
At 30 June 2009 and RZZZAFAA=ZTHR
1 July 2009 —ETAELA-H 75 216 190 327 543 — 1,351
Additions FE — 930 76 543 — 49 1,598
Acquired on acquisition of R EHERRMEA
subsidiaries — 11,588 1 — 2,642 505 14,736
Exchange realignment ERAE — 100 — 2 — 5 107
At 30 June 2010 RZZB-2EXA=1H 75 12,834 267 872 3,185 559 17,792
ACCUMULATED RitiE
DEPRECIATION
At 1 July 2008 RZBENELA-AH 23 115 170 327 — — 635
Provided for the year FREE 19 34 10 — 136 — 199
At 30 June 2009 and i NERAZTHR
1 July 2009 ZEEAELA-A Y] 149 180 327 136 — 834
Provided for the year FREE 19 1,050 19 16 686 — 1,790
Exchange realignment EHAE — 5 — — 3 — 8
At 30 June 2010 RZZE-ZFXA=TH 61 1,204 199 343 825 - 2,632
CARRYING VALUES IREE
At 30 June 2010 RZZE-2EXA=1H 14 11,630 68 529 2,360 559 15,160
At 30 June 2009 RZZBZAEXA=1AH 33 67 10 — 407 — 517

6 =
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Note:

(a)

(b)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives less their

residual values at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold improvements 4 years
Office equipment 4 years
Furniture and fixtures 4 years
Plant and machinery 4 years
Motor vehicles 4 years

As at 30 June 2010 and 2009, the carrying amount of the motor
vehicle held by Group under finance leases amounted to
HKD271,000 and HKD407,000 respectively.

18. ¥ BERRE®

Bt 2

(a) i BMERRENRERERE
B REEAIEAFRRTIFERFHA

il
BEMEELE s
WAE RN 4
RAREE m
R i 3 4
e s

(b) RZE-—ZTFER=ZTTAFAA=+H"
AEEREBREEERAZAEZEE
&5 5 A271,0007% st 407,000 7T ©
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19. FILM RIGHTS, FILMS IN PROGRESS AND FILM 19. EX¥HME & REZMRE
ROYALTY DEPOSITS B2
Film
royalty
Films in deposits
Film rights  progress 5 AR Total
EXEE #HERIR ®Be et
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
F&T FET F&TT FETT
Cost 5%
At 1 July 2008 RZZEZENFELA—H 57,000 26,208 482 83,690
Additions NE 20,278 — — 20,278
Transfer a8 1 10,173 (10,173) — —
At 30 June 2009 and R-_ZEZNFNA=FH
1 July 2009 rE—FEFENFLA—H 87,451 16,035 482 103,968
Additions NE 86 15,463 — 15,549
Transfer i 3 29,196 (29,196) — —
At 30 June 2010 RNZZE—ZEFA=+H 116,733 2,302 482 119,517
Accumulated EtEMERBEESE
amortisation and
impairment loss
At 1 July 2008 RZZEZENFELHA—A 34,480 1,485 482 36,447
Amortisation provided 4 I # 8 5
for the year 26,555 — — 26,555
Impairment loss FARRBZREEBE
recognised for
the year 12,634 — — 12,634
At 30 June 2009 and R-ZEZNFNA=1H
1 July 2009 rE—FEFENFLA—H 73,669 1,485 482 75,636
Amortisation provided 4 A & $5 % 5
for the year 24,788 — — 24,788
Impairment loss FAWRBBEEIE
recognised for
the year 8,545 4 — 8,549
At 30 June 2010 RZE—FFNA=1+H 107,002 1,489 482 108,973
Carrying values REE
At 30 June 2010 RZE—ZEFA=+H 9,731 813 — 10,544
At 30 June 2009 RZZEZNFNA=1+H 13,782 14,550 — 28,332

s &=
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19. FILM RIGHTS, FILMS IN PROGRESS AND FILM CEERE AR RERRIE
ROYALTY DEPOSITS (Continued) BR&w

(a

Amortisation charge of approximately HKD24,788,000
(2009: HKD26,555,000) with respect to film rights
has been included in cost of sales in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

The carrying amounts of film rights and films in
progress have reduced to their recoverable amounts
through recognition of impairment loss of
approximately HKD8,549,000 (2009: HKD12,634,000)
which has been included in administrative and other
expenses in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

(a

B Y MREZEHERLD
24,788,000 T (Z T T N -
26,555,000 L) IR &R A& 2
WS RETAEERA -

EXREREREAF2ERE
EEBBERBEBRBY
8,549,000 T(= & T N -
12,634,000 7o) M B K = & 7]
WEHE EEBREBEERN
FeErERERFTATHREH
ftb BT o
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20. GOODWILL AND IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON HERHEZRENR
GOODWILL
(a) Goodwill (a) BHE
HKD'000
FiT
COST A&

0=

Neo Telemedia Limited Annual Report 2010

Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries ¥ & g1 AU B B QAR ATE L

before adjustment 134,565
Adjustment to the fair value of FABRURMARGTERBH 2 WERE

purchase consideration during the ZRY¥1E

Measurement Period (81,720)
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries % % AU BE I B R = FTE &

after adjustment 52,845
Impairment loss B & B (5,895)
CARRYING VALUE fREE
At 30 June 2010 R-ZE-—TFXA=+H 46,950

For the year ended 30 June 2010, addition of
goodwill was arisen from acquisition of China
Wimetro Communications Company Limited and its
subsidiaries, including China Wimetro Company
Limited, Shenzhen Huanlian Communications
Technology Company Limited and Shenzhen Kunyu
Communications Technology Company Limited
(collectively refer to as “China Wimetro Group”)
amounted to approximately HKD52,845,000.

BE_Z-—ZTFA=TAHLHF
E-rEEBEDELEE KBS
EEaimBaEERAARE
WE@E’@%¢lﬁﬁ%ﬁ
BRAF - XY MLAIEBIER
mﬁﬁﬁT& YT F RS
BWMAERART(GE AT HE
BT E B 28O
52,845,000 JT °
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For the year ended 30 June 2010 HE =% ~%

GOODWILL (continued)

(b)

HMEREELZRENS @

ZENAZTRLEFE

Impairment testing on goodwill (b) MEZFHER:S

For impairment testing purposes, the Group has RABEBAARCENTE A5 H

identified the following cash-generating units EHERTIRESEEEMN:

("CGUs"):

— Sales and distribution of telecommunication — HERDHBEMEM
products

—  Providing engineering and marketing services — EHEESEBBENTL

regarding wireless business

— Providing agency service for purchasing —
equipment regarding wireless business

The carrying amount of goodwill (net of accumulated
impairment losses) was allocated to cash generating
units as follow:

12 Ko 5 HE & AR 7%

REREGXBAEBNE

B MR IERS

Bz REEGR R RER
BIESETREELEMNT:

2010
—2-%F
HKD’000
FEX
Sales and distribution of HERDIHEMEM
telecommunication products 1,230
Providing engineering and marketing 2 MR E K BN TRE K&
services regarding wireless T 35 1 & AR 75
business 34,263
Providing agency service for REEHBESEBEHEOBESRM
purchasing equipment regarding R I2 R 7
wireless business 11,457
46,950

TEFEEEEERAIA 2010F W
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20. GOODWILL AND IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON
GOODWILL (continued)

o =

(b)

Neo Telemedia Limited Annual Report 2010

Impairment testing on goodwill (Continued)

Sales and distribution of telecommunication products

The recoverable amount of this cash-generating unit
is determined based on value in use calculation. The
calculation based on i) the profit forecast approved
by the management covering a five-year period and
i) a discount rate of 11.48%
reflects current market assessments of the time value

per annum which

of money and the credit risk specific to the CGUs.

Profit forecast was based on budgeted sales and
budgeted cost of sales during the budgeted period.
Budgeted gross margins were determined based on
management’s expectation for market development
and past experience, and the management believes
that the budgeted gross margins were reasonable.
The cash flows beyond that five-year period have
been extrapolated using a steady 3% per annum
growth rate, which is in line with the long-term
growth rate for the relevant industry. The key
assumptions for the value in use calculations are

those regarding the growth rates and discount rates.

Providing engineering and marketing services
regarding wireless business

The recoverable amount of this cash-generating unit
is determined based on value in use calculation. The
calculation based on i) the profit forecast approved
by the management covering a five-year period and
i) a discount rate of 15.23% per annum which
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the credit risk specific to the CGUs.

20. HERHEZRENR 2

(b)

MEZRENR )
HER 7 5 EHE

ARESELEBMNZAIKESE
DEREAEBEFEEIETE -
BREGTEREDREB)ERE#]
HEZ AEFHHEMBEHN K
i11.48% A HT 37 R (A R i
BHEREEEBENTHUR
ReELENMBEEEERR)
e °

m A FER T RIBETEE

EHEERHEXNATBEME -
1#%ﬂ$ﬂﬁﬁaﬁﬁﬁm
LERRNBHMEEERET -
BEEERGEREENXTE
AE -BBARAFHZEAESRE
AR 5 F3% 18 E 18 K R HEH
MZxERXEFBETENR
BEE-—H - EHEENE
miﬁﬁ“ﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁ?
B -

Hi &Y 3

JE MRS F B TFER
75 1R

ARIBEEEEM 2D &5
TEREREBEFEEETE
BHAGEREDREB)EEE
B2 hFOH O M E O R
MBB%Mﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ
SHEREEEBENTEAR
REEXEBEUNFEEEERR)
il 7€ °
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For the year ended 30 June 2010 HZE=%

20. GOODWILL AND IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON
GOODWILL (continued)

(b)

Impairment testing on goodwill (Continued)

Providing engineering and marketing service regarding
wireless business (Continued)

Profit forecast was based on budgeted sales and
budgeted cost of sales during the budgeted period.
Budgeted gross margins were determined based on
management’s expectation for market development,
and the management believes that the budgeted
gross margins were reasonable. The cash flows
beyond that five-year period have been extrapolated
using a steady 3% per annum growth rate, which is
in line with the long-term growth rate for the
relevant industry. The key assumptions for the value
in use calculations are those regarding the growth

rates and discount rates.

Providing agency service for purchasing equipment
regarding wireless business

The recoverable amount of this cash-generating unit
is determined based on value in use calculation. The
calculation based on i) the profit forecast approved
by the management covering a five-year period and
i) a discount rate of 14.74%
reflects current market assessments of the time value

per annum which

of money and the credit risk specific to the CGUs.

Profit forecast was based on budgeted sales and
budgeted expenses during the budgeted period. The
key assumptions for the value in use calculations are
those regarding the growth rates and discount rates.

The Directors of the Company are of the opinion,
based on the valuation report carried out by Malcolm
& Associates Appraisal Limited, a qualified valuer,
that goodwill associated with those cash generating
units was impaired by approximately HKD5,895,000.

B R R MR S>>

~EFEXNA=+THIFE

20, BHERFEZRENRN 2@

(b)

PEHFESEEAERAT 20105 ®

MEZRENR )

FE A AR TS B B L2 R
5 1 &R % ()

i K FE ORI T AR BR TE B HA A A 8

ERELHEEKNRBEEME °
HEEMNEDREBEEBREST
GERMNERRBTERET
BERBERGEEEENEE
A -HBBRAFHZRESRE
Bl & F3% 12 18 & R
Mmazig REHRBBITENEH
BEX - - FRHEEFEZE
WEERJEFAERERE
REBR -

HE R B AEAR KB B A9 A8 B &5
1R

ABEESEEXEBEM 2 WESE
DERFEHEBAEELETE
ERAAEREDRE)EEEHR
A 2 T HR i A TEOR K20i)14.74%
W REF (AR TS ER
HEEEENTHARRESESE
BANMNBEEERRBR)ME °

526 ) TR0 AR 98 0 P 0 4
EEERMXEEME - £/
HEIEENIEBRERE
ERFREEMD -

B & A & 1% & 8 B Malcolm &
Associates Appraisal Limited fT %R
BHEERSE ARFREER
B O EZERSELBMNEHA
#) 78 2 Rl B 495,895,000 7T ©
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DEPOSIT PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF A
SUBSIDIARY

At 30 June 2010, the balance of HKD230,000,000
represent a refundable deposit upon signing the following
conditional agreement.

Pursuant to the announcement of the Company dated 14
June 2010, the Company has entered into a conditional
agreement with Mr. Chu Yip Wah (the “Vendor A") for
the acquisition of the entire issued share capital of Ease
Ray Limited (“Ease Ray”) at a consideration of
HKD1,100,000,000,

according to the terms of the agreement, on 3 June 2010

subject to downward adjustment

("Ease Ray Acquisition”).

The consideration of the Ease Ray Acquisition will be
satisfied (i) as to HKD230,000,000 payable in cash as a
refundable deposit upon signing of Ease Ray Acquisition
(i) as to HKD870,000,000 by way of the
allotment and issue of 6,000,000,000 consideration shares

agreement;

at an issue price of HKDO0.145 per consideration share by
the Company to the Vendor A or his nominees (except for
connected person of the Company).

In addition, according to the conditional agreement, a
profit guarantee shall be provided by the Ease Ray Group
and its subsidiaries (collectively known as “Ease Ray
Group”) for not less than RMB51,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$58,140,000) profit after tax for the
period from 1 January 2011 to 31 December 2011. If Ease
Ray Group fail to meet the profit guarantee for the year
ended 31 December 2011, the Vendor A shall pay the
Company a compensation of ten times the shortfall of the
profit guarantee by adjusting the consideration.

Ease Ray Group is undergoing reorganisation in preparation
of the Ease Ray Acquisition. Upon completion of the
reorganisation, Ease Ray will directly held Pacific Mind
Limited and will indirectly held Shanghai Zirui Investment
Consultation Company Limited, City Media Company
Limited and Shanghai Dasan Hexian City Environmental Art

Company Limited.

21.

B E-EMEBARZEREE

RZE—ZFTF A=+ H: & &%
230,000,000 T ZEREEUTH
BEHEHErREENES -

BEARABHAEA-_ZT—TF AT
MERA K ZJXAQEE/\\\f?—%@i
NAZHEREELE(EFRDE
S EE 0 LA {E1,100,000,000
B (A REBEREGERATHE) KE
BEBRAR(ERDZBEERTZ
BA(EZWE]D -

BEmWBEBREBATI G XM )
230,000,000 L HEL B 5w & E W IE
EBEIEREER & I M)
870,000,000 st A A A A N IZ & I
QMUSBE T RERMDETEMES
R BEREARRT 2 BEATBRIN
fic 2% % %% 776,000,000,000 3% X {8 B 19
ZARNEZT o

o - BBEGRGEHE - BEoo R EM
BRrRI(GHEIExSBDERHEE =
ET——F%—fF—HE_T——F+=
A=+—BHHAKRRENETERA
R #51,000,0007T (B! 458,140,000
TZIRFBEFNBE - WMEREEREZE
—%——¢+—ﬂ—+—5¢¢F$
BERRIFANE FEBHFFEARKE
#ﬁﬂ”ZﬁtiﬁﬁMﬁ% IS
TREET B EE -

EnEER IR ERE S WEHET
BH REEZEKE ERBEER
BARBARDR UHKEERELSE
FTEREBANBERAT - BEEEM
AR AR N EBRK=FZH TR
BHEMBRAR
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DEPOSIT PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF A
SUBSIDIARY (Continued)

Ease Ray Limited is an investment holding company. After
reorganisation, its subsidiaries are principally engaged in
the design and production of traffic signboards and
computer graphics; research, development and production
of signal systems equipment, design and production of
advertisements in the PRC.

Up to the date of this report, those conditions which
stated in the announcement of the Company dated 14

21.

nlE-EHEARZEMESE

(7% )
L/%E‘/

HRBRARI=XKRERERRE -
REAR  HHEARETE2RHERK
ERBEETENERE X R REH
EERERSRBOMERLE - A
Ko B S R ET R BUE o

—=

=z

BEARSHH ARAR=T
FRATMB 2 &P 80 % F R

June 2010 has not yet satisfied. R T E K o

TRADE RECEIVABLES . BHEKAR™®
2010 2009
—E—FF ZEENF
HKD’000 HKD'000
THET FHET
Trade receivables E 5 EWRR 49,424 28,957
Less: Accumulated impairment losses 3 @ 2 &t E &5 18 (790) —
48,634 28,957
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22. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 22. BSEWKWERR &)
The Group allows an average credit period of 30-90 days RAEBHTHESHEF FH30£90H
to its trade customers. The aged analysis of trade MEEH REBEESHAREZEZEH
receivables presented based on the invoice date or the play KB RNMEAZES 2 B ZEKER
period of films at the end of the reporting period, net of (BB ERBREBE) 2 RER O
impairment losses recognised was as follows: T
2010 2009
—E-FF ZEENF
HKD’000 HKD'000
THET FAET
Within 30 days 30BN 16,855 11,942
31 to 60 days 31260H — 2,178
61 to 90 days 61290H 2,108 4,353
Over 90 days HB3E90H 29,671 10,484
48,634 28,957
The movements in impairment losses of trade receivables BORWER 2 REBEZSHNOT:
were as follows:
2010 2009
—E-FF —ZTTNF
HKD’000 HKD'000
TET FAT
At 1 July mnEHA—HR — —
Impairment loss recognised during R AR 2 6 (B E 18
the year 786 —
Exchange realignment b 53 & 4 —
At 30 June RANA=+H 790 —

6 =
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TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

As at 30 June 2010, included in the impairment losses are
individually impaired trade receivable in the Group with an
aggregate balance of approximately HKD790,000 (2009:
Nil) which have been placed in severe financial difficulties
and the management assessed that the recovery of the
is doubtful.
collateral over these balances.

amounts The Group does not hold any

As at 30 June 2010 and 2009, the aged analysis of trade
receivables that were past due but not impaired are as

22,

B 5 EWER® )

R-TE—ZTFXA=Z+H  BREEIE
BIREEBEF4790,0008 TT( =2 =
NE BIZERBEMFEREFE
ERRENAAEBRESERER &
BEITZENBEUNER A&EH
WTERZEEHREETANERR -

R-E-—ZTFR-_ZFZAFRA=TF
B 2@ MERBENESERER

follows: ZEHRBROHMT
2010 2009
—E—-FF —ETNF
HKD’000 HKD'000
FETT FET

Overdue by: 0 Hf

1 to 30 days 1£30H 2,108 709
31 to 60 days 31260H — —
61 to 90 days 61290H — 2,889
Over 90 days im0 H 28,962 11,240
31,070 14,838

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
related to a wide range of customers for whom there was
no recent history of default.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired
related to a number of independent customers that have a
Based on past

good track record with the Group.

experience, management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality
and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The

Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

REHFRRAE 2 8 5 & WK E
MHEERCHENZEATFPER -

EaBERRENESEEERES
ERERBRIFEECENBLEFLER -
REBERR ERERELXTHEHR
ZEEEBRITEEANE  AHR
AR 2 E - EE A L R E
BER AEEYERZFEHRTELE
]l 3 am e
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22. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Included in trade receivables are the following amounts
denominated in a currency other than the functional

22. BSEWKWERR#)
2 5 e I BE 2%

HENEENDER

BRETIHREAEMEZ
SN B 5

currency of the entity to which they relate: 18) :
2010 2009
—g-%8F -—TIAS
‘000 ‘000
Fx FT
RMB AR% 18,054 25,101

23. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

23. RHRE -ZERAMEKRIE

2010 2009
—E—-FF —ETNF
HKD’'000 HKD’'000
TERT FHET
Prepayments (Note) B4 ZE (M 7F) 27,166 1,928
Deposits & 833 1,577
Other receivables H fth fE YL FRIB 12,239 80
40,238 3,585
Less: Accumulated impairment loss 38 : 25t E E 18 (164) —
40,074 3,585

Note: Included in prepayments, there is an amount of HKD25,870,000 to MicE: AN REREL D ER L ERRSE

a third party for the project development and consultancy services.

s &=
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PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 23. ERRIE B REMEKRIE
RECEIVABLES (continued) (&)
The movements in impairment losses of other receivables HEmMEWRE 2 REBEESH W T
were as follows:
2010 2009
—F-%F —ZEThEF
HKD'000 HKD'000
FHT FA T
At 1 July RnEHA—HR — —
Impairment loss recognised during F AR Z
the year B B 18 163 —
Exchange realignment M 8 B 1 —
At 30 June MRARNA=+H 164 —
At 30 June 2010, included in impairment losses are R-ZE—ZTFEXA=+H " BEEIRE
individually impaired other receivables of the Group with BIE&BEFTTHAREE164,000T (=
an aggregate balance of approximately HKD164,000 (2009: EENF - B)2RPREELCRE
Nil) which are long outstanding and have been placed in R ER B8 Bt 75 TR B P ) B ME BIURUE 89 AR
severe financial difficulties and the management assessed SEERKRKE  ERENEEDNKE
that the recovery of the amounts is doubtful. The Group RBRE ANEEUERZELERTE
does not hold any collateral over these balances. EEHm o
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 24. BERBELEEY

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and
balance with banks, and investments in money market

instruments.

Bank balances carry interest at market rates ranged from
0.001% to 0.36% (2009: 0.001%) per annum.

Investments in money market instruments represent short
term deposits with maturity of three months or less and
carried interest rate at 0.001% (2009: Nil) per annum.

iﬁi&fﬁéﬁf VERBRFERE MR
B UEREEMBITAZE

fﬁﬁﬁiﬁ%ﬁi?ﬁi%fﬁﬂﬁ/H’uoom%
2£0.36% (ZZEZNF : 0.001%) 518 °

ERMSTAZREENR=ZMAX
3

/\\
LRI ENESEFER BFEM R
0.001% (ZEZENF : T)EF R -
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued) 24. BeRBEEEY @)
Approximately HKD87,000 as at 30 June 2010 (2009: Nil) RZZE—-—FFRXA=1H" #87,000
are denominated in RMB and deposited with banks in the BT (ZETNF : B)UAREEFE
PRC. The RMB is not freely convertible into other WHEAREMET ARETIFSAER
currencies, however, under Mainland China's Foreign AMAHEMEE A REBEPEA
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of iﬁﬁ’]%ﬁ%@ﬂ%%& HEIE - BIE R
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange EERHT ARREBEEBEEE
Regulations, the Company is permitted to exchange RMB TT%E%%W%&H%AEM%}@Eﬁ
for other currencies through authorised banks to conduct fthE % -
foreign exchange business.
TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 25. BHBARMREIERRR
2010 2009
—E—FF —ETNF
HKD’000 HKD'000
THET FAT
Trade payables B ENER 27,999 11,764
Bills payables JE TR & 45 —
28,044 11,764
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables RFEPRIEBELHZNNESE
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the MERRWER ST :
reporting period:
2010 2009
—E-FF —ZEENEF
HKD'000 HKD'000
THET FAT
Within 30 days 30BN 7,456 5,999
31 to 60 days 31260H 1 —
61 to 90 days 61Z290H — —
Over 90 days HBiE90H 20,542 5,765
27,999 11,764

Annual Report 2010
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TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (continued)

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 90
days. The Group has financial risk management policies in
place to ensure that all payables are settled within the
credit timeframe.

Included in the trade payables are the following amounts
denominated in a currency other than the functional

currency of the entity to which they relate:

25.

a8 B w RS>

ZENAZTRLEFE

B iR RN TR

EBEERMNTHEERAEIAR - K&
B 26l 0 R b B R R AR
EEHRANGEEMAENFIE -

BH5RMNEREETIRRUARZ
RN BEENINEEERIINE R
1B) :

2010 2009

—E-FF —EThE

HKD'000 HKD'000

Tl FHBT

RMB AR — 6,997

Taiwan Dollar At — 2,157
AMOUNT DUE TO A RELATED COMPANY 26. EEFEAEATIRIE

The amount due to a related company represents an
amount due to Guangdong Zhaohong Communications
Technology Limited (“Guangdong Zhaohong”). One of the
directors of a subsidiary of the Company, Shenzhen Kunyu
Communications Technology Company Limited, is also the
shareholder of Guangdong Zhaohong during the period
from 15 April 2009 to 10 March 2010. The amount due to
Guangdong Zhaohong is unsecured, non-interest bearing
and repayable on demand.

FENBEERBIRAEEENERIKEE
ERMARAR(ERIKE]) 2R -
R-ZEZNFOA+HERE-_ZT—F
F=ZATHHE " ARFMNEB QR
YmEFREXMAERARNES —
REETRERKBHOER - BNE
RKBHAETSEER  REREER
BE -

TEFEEEEERAIA 2010F W
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27. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

2

=+HIEFE

T 5 > >

27. MEHERE

Present value of

Minimum lease payments minimum lease payments

RKHEE REHESZHE
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-TF —ZTThhF ZB-FTF —_TITNF
HKD’'000 HKD'000 HKD’'000 HKD'000
FET FET FET FHET
Within one year —&R 22 257 21 249
More than one year, Him—F - BR
but not exceeding 8 38 M
two years = 21 = 21
22 278 21 270
Less: Future finance BRKBEEA
charges (1) (8) N/AFREAH NATEA
Present value of lease T & & E 7 RE
obligations 21 270
Less: Amount due for  J& : FA121E A R EI A
settlement within 12 BERRIA
months (shown under €7 V)
current liabilities) BEEET) 21 249
Amount due for 1218 A 12 2 HA
settlement after 12 EErAE
months — 21

102 &
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It is the Group’s policy to lease certain of its motor
vehicles under finance leases. The average lease term is 2
years (30 June 2009: 2 years). Interest rates underlying all
obligations under finance leases are fixed at respective
contract dates at 2.65% (30 June 2009: 2.65%). At the
end of lease term, the Company has the option to

purchase the motor vehicles at nominal prices.

All obligations under finance leases are denominated in
Hong Kong Dollars.

The Group’s obligations under finance leases are secured
by the lessor’s charge over the leased asset.

AEEBRXABEREBERRE T
AE FHBEPAMF(ZZEZTNEF
NA=ZTH: M) FTAERMENREER
ERHBMNERDIRBEAOBHETE
B265% (ZEZENFAAA=TH:
2.65%) c HHEAERE - RAAFA[EE
REAEEEZSRAE -

PERMEMREAEETEE -

AEEZRMEMERE
ZHEBEFEAM -

T3AH A A
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28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. &

Number of
ordinary shares

of HKDO0.01
each
BREE
0.01BTZ Value
LiERE BEE
HKD’'000
FAET
Authorised: AR
1 July 2008, 30 June 2009, RZETZN\FLH—AB -
1 July 2009 and 30 June 2010 ZEZNFRA=THE
“EENFLA—BR
—E-ZEEXA=1H 40,000,000,000 400,000
Issued and fully paid: EBITRER:
1 July 2008, 30 June 2009 and RZEZENF+HA—AH -
1 July 2009 —ZEENEFERNA=ZTHER
—TTAFLA—H 12,500,000,000 125,000
Settlement of consideration in BRNEEWENREAR
respect of acquisition of RAB (Ff 5T a)
subsidiaries (Note a) 363,200,000 3,632
Placement of shares (Note b) Bl & B 19 (B 7% b) 2,565,000,000 25,650
At 30 June 2010 R-ZZE—FFRA=1H 15,428,200,000 154,282
Notes: Bt 5E
(@) Pursuant to the announcements of the Company dated 10 June (@) BEBEARIARZZENFAATERZ
2009 and 10 September 2009, the acquisition of the entire issued ZENFAATHEHAM  KEHBEER
share capital of China Wimetro Communications Company Limited WHBEEARABTZBEHETRAER
was completed on 9 September 2009. According to the sale and —ETNFAANBERK- $E};, T
purchase agreement dated 5 June 2009 and the Company's NEANAEHMERHARAR
announcement dated 12 October 2009, 363,200,000 ordinary ?ihi-f—}fj-f—:ElZ?}ﬁﬁ’zﬁﬁaﬁem
shares have been issued by the Company to Mr. Lee Tak Ming (the —ETNF+ A+ H#17363,200,000
“Vendor”) and parties nominated by the Vendor on 12 October BEEBRTFEALETELT) AR
2009. B AL °
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SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b) On 21 April 2010, the Company entered into a placing agreement
for placing 2,565,000,000 shares with a par value of HKD0.01 each
to independent investors at a price of HKDO.16 per placing share.
The placing was completed on 14 May 2010. Net proceeds from
such issue amounted to approximately HKD404,194,000 (after
offsetting placement expenses of HKD6,206,000),
approximately HKD25,650,000 and HKD378,544,000 were recorded

in share capital and share premium respectively.

out of which

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

(the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and

The Company operates a share option scheme

rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’'s operations. Eligible participants of
the Scheme include the Company’'s Directors (including
independent non-executive Directors), other employees of
the Group, and suppliers of goods or services to the
Group. The Scheme became effective on 22 July 2002
and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in
force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an
amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time. The maximum
number of shares issuable under share options to each
eligible participant in the scheme within any 12-month
period, is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time. Any further grant of share options in
excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a

general meeting.

28.

29.

(b) n=
25 SR 701678 T 2 B1& 782
% & % Bt 52,565,000,000/% 2 & % @ (&

~FFmASt A ARAR

0.01B THRMATLEEHH - BBER
—T-ZTFRAATHEAEK - ZEET
) FT 15 B F 2840 A2 404,194,0007% 7T (£
84 BC & B9 36,206,000 T 18) » H
#925,650,0007% T }378,544,0007% 7T &
BIETABRA & B 19 % 8 o

i B HE 5t B

ARw&RAE— A E RER & (% &
%J)' EE’\JEE;MK%@%%EEXIJJVE

HERMZAER2EERTRBLD
HZRABZARERSEEREAR
AEFERBRBIFATESR) A5
BE AR 8 RN B S Ml iR
JEE - LAt BN _TE_F LA+
“BER BRITEEHERTIN B
Mz EHEFI0FRA—BEAXL -

BRIREBEZTE A TREZRITER
hEseBERSN(WETE) AR
AMEREECEITRMNI10% ° %5 &
EaER2EEEEM2EAHRBA
TEBERERAERT &SN HE

T RBEBRARBEAFEDSETRN
1% - HBEz ERAZALBRRERR
R L#tfE FrAE - TRHEMB
P HE o
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Share options granted to a Director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive Directors. In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive Director, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on
the price of the Company's shares at the date of the
grant) in excess of HKD5 million, within any 12-month
period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in

a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 28 days from the date of the offer, upon payment
by the
grantee. The exercise period of the share options granted

of a nominal consideration of HKD1 in total
is determinable by the Directors, and commences after a
certain vesting period and ends on a date which is not
later than 10 years from the date of the offer of the share

options or the expiry date of the Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by
the Directors, but may not be less than the higher of (i)
the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares
(i) the
average Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s

on the date of the offer of the share options;

share for five trading days immediately preceding the date
of the offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholder’s meeting.

No share option has been granted by the Company under
the scheme up to the date of approval of these financial
statements.

29,

a0 %R RKE>>

FRA=THILFE

IR o)

ARANEEE THAHITERRE
IREFETABEALRTERER

BIBEEBIERITES I AL o It
Gh o HEEEMAREARBEA BT
—BEIERFEL—BBIUERNTES
o1 T Al B A I 2 T A B R R
AN FME BB EITRNZ20.1%
5k 42 (A 8 #15,000,00078 7T (I R & H
HEARB 2 BRHESRFTHE) S Al
ATELERRERRE NS L& -

REBREERTERLEEER
%t%mam&m7aﬁAE&m%
BEBAIXNEHXIBETRAERE -
EREBREZTEHHERET
YHEETHEBHEES ZEFRD
BREBAREI0FARZEZHA
(mBEREELEE)L -

BREZITEEREFET  HETE
PRIV RE: ()VARF DR E
% 1% BB P i B H A B R P P R 2 R
ME(ARBARNREZZRRH
PR B B AT ALIE 2 5 B B XX PP
Wz FHYHIE: REHEE -

BRELTETESAE AR B
RERAGERZZER -

BEHALSMBHRRZAH A2
A B AR R A% 5T B R B AR o
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DEFERRED TAXATION

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately HKD55,086,000 (2009:
HKD26,116,000) available for offset against future profits.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
the remaining tax losses due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams. The tax losses may be carried

forward indefinitely.

At the end of the
deductible temporary differences of approximately
HKD1,677,000 (2009: HKD2,111,000). No deferred tax asset
has been

reporting period, the Group has

recognised in relation to such deductible
temporary difference as it is not probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible

temporary differences can be utilised.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 9 September 2009,

acquisition of the entire

the Group completed the
interest in China Wimetro
Communications Company Limited and its subsidiaries,
including China Wimetro Company Limited, Shenzhen
Huanlian Communications Technology Company Limited
and Shenzhen Kunyu Communications Technology
“China Wimetro
Group”). The consideration should be settled by issuance
and allotment of 363,200,000 ordinary shares of the
Company at HKDO0.15 each (“First Batch Consideration
Shares”) and 544,800,000 ordinary shares of the Company

at HKDO0.15 each (“Second Batch Consideration Shares”).

Company Limited (collectively refer to as

Pursuant to the sales and purchase agreement dated 5
June 2009 with an (the
“Vendor”), the First Batch Consideration Shares will be
issued within five business date upon completion of

independent third parties

acquisition of China Wimetro Group and the Second Batch
Consideration Shares will be issued if the audited profit
after tax for the year ended 30 June 2010 of China
Wimetro Group not less than RMB60,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HKD68,100,000) (“Reference Profit”).

30.

31.

BB IE

RBEER AEEOREAT B E
8 4955,086,000%8 T(Z & T 1, F:
26,116,000 7T) AT A 7 K 8 K K &
F o B3P R SR E F % 2 LATEOR] - B
mEERBEERB TR EEIET
ATERR - IS ESIB S AT ER A -

RMEMR REENA MR EE
B #) /1,677,000 T (Z 2 T N F:
2,111,000 7t) - A S A e B Al 4
WE R EEAHEENERT R -
M EFZETHNAEREZERR
BREHIEEE -

Wz B B 1B 2 5]

RZZEZAFALANE  AEBEZEK
WERRESENMBEERATRE
MEAR(REPRESEETAERA
A ORI T L) B u*%s‘zmﬁliﬁ'@ﬂ&
FYI T FBERMAR AT (FH

BIPEESNTER]) 22 BIRE -
EBRREARSRASHE LT RE
%%363,200,000fx N AR E @B AR ([ —
HRERG]D RIZFROISE TET
K Bt #544,800,0000% A& A 7] & @ &
TEZHREBRMDD 2N -

BEE—2BYE=F(EHFDIL
AfAE_ZTAFEAATRZEER
B HRERS BN TP
RESRTmEREBRAEEEBNET
WPEESETERHBEE-_S—ZF
NAZTBHLEFEZREZGRBIE &
A L A R #60,000,0000T (FHE »
#768,100,000% T)([& £ & F]) - Al
BEBRITE_MNRERS -
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ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The First Batch Consideration was issued on 12 October
2009. China Wimetro Group contributed approximately
HKD5,710,000 of turnover and HKD9,607,000 of loss for
the period from date of completion of acquisition to 30
June 2010 to the Group. As the actual result for the year
ended 30 June 2010 of China Wimetro Group is less than
the Reference Profit, the Company will not allotted Second
Batch Consideration Shares. The total consideration
adjusted from HKD136,200,000 to HKD54,480,000
accordingly.

The acquisition has been accounted for using the
acquisition method. The amount of goodwill arising from
acquisition was approximately of HKD134,565,000 as at
the date of completion of acquisition and approximately of
HKD52,845,000 after adjusted the effect of Second Batch
Consideration Shares.

31.

ZENAZTRLEFE

e 55 Bt 1B 8 B (40

E—HABROHER=2ZETAELA
+-BHE%T EPHAH%?;@W%IEM&
BERBRE-_T—ZTFA=1H
HAFE B N & 1B BE A ¥ B 495,710,000
75 70 M 85 18 499,607,000 T © AR
EEGETEREE-_T—ZFA
S+HLEFENEREMNIRL2E &
B WARTNTEHEEE _HRER
3 48R (B Bl 8136,200,0007% 7T 48
JE §8 #£ 254,480,000 JT °

FRWEERIWE R - BYEEE
EZ%%E@H&@%%EREHJ%Z’U%
134,565,000 7T + & ZHRE
g - é%@%52,845,000/%75 o
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31. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 31. WEEMEBAS )
The net assets acquired in this transaction, and the ZEXGMBENEEFAEARR
goodwill arising, are as follows: EXHEEBENT:
Acquiree’s
carrying Fair value
amount  adjustment
HWEAT AFEE Fair value
ZHREE B R AEE
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
Net assets acquired Fir i B & 2= 3 A
Property, plant and equipment ¥ ¥ - B = & & & 12,094 2,642 14,736
Trade and other receivables & 5 [ UK BR 3¢ 2 E 1th j&
e # 18 14,285 — 14,285
Cash and cash equivalents RERREFEDY 354 — 354
Trade and other payables B 5 P BR 5 K E A E
WIE (27,692) — (27,692)
Receipt in advances B U ER =4 K (48) — (48)
1,635
Goodwill = 52,845
Adjusted consideration KHBENRE 54,480
Adjusted consideration KABRRKEBBATI AR
satisfied by: FRNE
Issuance of First Batch BOTF-HRERD
Consideration Shares 54,480
Net cash inflow arising on WEEANRESRA
acquisition: F R
Cash and cash equivalents FriER e kRS
EY 354

108 % Neo Telemedia Limited Annual Report 2010




31.

32.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B wRRMNES>

For the year ended 30 June 2010 HZE=%+

ZENAZTRLEFE

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continved) 31. WEMBAE
If the acquisition had been completed on 1 July 2009, the WHBERZETNF LA —BTK
turnover of the Group would remain unchanged and the AEBHE_ZE=—ZFA=1TH8iE
loss of the Group would increase to HKD46,431,000 for FRERZEEFEBRBTAE  mAEE
the year ended 30 June 2010. The pro forma information 2 518 g 1 I £46,431,0008 70 ©
is for illustrative purpose only and is not necessarily an ZERERFERAAE U TNEERMN
indication of the turnover and results of operations of the WEBER-_EZTNFELA BT
Group that actually would have been achieved had the AEENERES EXBRIEEHE
acquisition been completed on 1 July 2009, nor is it BHIER  SERKRKER ZTEA -
intended to be a projection of future results.
OPERATING LEASES 32. BEHE
The Group as lessee AEEBEEBEREAN
Minimum lease payments paid under operating leases in FARBRAEZEYMELEHEDND
respect of office premises during the year amounting to =K £ 4 56,642,000 L (ZFF
approximately HKD6,642,000 (2009: HKD4,789,000). FLEE : 4,789,000 7T) ©
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the KEHERBEREAEERESTHA
Group for certain of its office premises. Leases are EMERERNOHES o HAK 1 EE E
negotiated for a term of two years (2009: two years) and RMECZEZENFE - MF) B EH
rentals are fixed. None of the leases included contingent FeoBMEIABSHMANRERF
rentals and terms of renewal were established in the BRRTSZ PAFE A o
leases.
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RB|EHR AREERBRUATAHE
commitments for future minimum lease payments under FE AL HA AR K &
non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows: B S 1 A E -
2010 2009
—E—-%F ZTEThEF
HKD’000 HKD'000
TFHET FAT
Within one year —FR 3,000 5,652
In the second to fifth year inclusive #£-EFRAF(BIEEREMFE) 5,594 234
8,594 5,886
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33. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 33. EFKIE
(@) (@)
2010 2009
—E-—-%F ZEENF
HKD’000 HKD'000
THET FAET
Commitments contracted for but BHANTEERGEE Y
not provided in the consolidated BWwECDEFTHER
financial statements in respect of B e
— Films production — BlExhH — 350
— Construction in progress — EREIR 2,337 —
— Project development — EHEER 3,400 —
5,737 350
(b) As stated in Note 21 of the consolidated financial (b) AR E BTSRRI 21578
statement, the Company has entered into a ARl BEESEBEE S
conditional agreement with Vendor A for the BRIl B HEwmaE - RIBZE
acquisition of Ease Ray Group. Pursuant to the Bt wmE Tl”]’ TR E
conditional agreement, if the acquisition of Ease Ray S8 AARAEARKESLD
Group complete, the Company committed to provide 74,000%H LED éf b ATTIE B
a fund of not more than HKD60,000,000 on or ERER-_ZTE——F=ZA=+
before 31 March 2011 to Ease Ray Group for —H®ZzAREREEREET
acquiring not less than 4,000 wireless 3G-based %1460,000,0008 T2 &% - &H
information technology LED traffic lights. Up to the EARERR BHAR=-Z—
date of this report, those conditions which stated in TFERATHEBZAMAED
the announcement dated 14 June 2010 has not yet R R E R T YRR
satisfied and the acquisition has not yet completed. RITHK °
34. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION 3. TEHBEEXH

Included in the additions in property, plant and equipment
of approximately HKD488,000 was settled through finance
lease instead of cash for the year ended 30 June 2009.

BHE-_ZZAFNA=1TBLEE "
NEWE BB MR 1E #488,000%8
TEEBMEREMIHFRESEE -

110 % Neo Telemedia Limited Annual Report 2010



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

nv-ﬁ

For the year ended 30 June 2010 HZE=%+

ﬁﬁ&#ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁi>>

FENA=ZTHLEFE

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS HEALRS
(@) The balances with related parties at the end of @ MMEHR BHBEEALTHE
reporting period are disclosed in Note 26 to the B ERNEE B HRENE
consolidated financial statements. 26 °
(b) The key management personnel of the Group by AEBZZEEEABBEARD
comprises all Directors of the Company, details of AIFfEES HEMFERR
their emoluments are disclosed in Note 16. The R 16 - KA GEE F 2 FH B
remuneration of the Directors of the Company is HFMZEgREBARRE R
determined by the remuneration committee having MR A MEE °
regards to the performance of individuals and
market.
36. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 36. TEMBAT
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 30 TREINNR_ZE-—ZTFA=ZTHHD
June 2010: TENMBLRAE:
Nominal value
Place of incorporation of paid up

Class of and kind of issued share Attributable equity interest
Name of subsidiary shares held  legal entity capital attributable to the Group Principal activities
EHEH
AR IR ERTRE
WBASEH FERHEN ZEERER REE FRERERR TEEH
Directly Indirectly
EE ol
Best Faith (Hong Kong) Limited ~ Ordinary Hong Kong, limited HKD3,000 - 100% Production and sales of
(Trading as B&S Films Creation liability company videos and films, and
Works House) licensing of videos
and copyrights/film
rights in Hong Kong
AEERBRAR LAk & BRAF 3,000 T - 100% REERENHEER
(IR REFEIEERRBEL) FRZARRLEG
FERE/EY
it
B&S Group Limited Ordinary British Virgin Islands, HKD234,000 100% — Investment holding
limited liability
company
B&S Group Limited LaER EERTMS 234,000/ 7T 100% — REBRK
BRAT
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36. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 36. EMEBAE (&)

Nominal value
Place of incorporation of paid up

Class of and kind of issued share Attributable equity interest
Name of subsidiary shares held  legal entity capital attributable to the Group Principal activities
EHEH
i M 3L B R ERTRE
HEBLE &M FRRBEN ZEEERER REE FRERERR TERH
Directly Indirectly
EE &
B&S Films Distribution Company  Ordinary Hong Kong, limited HKD10,000 — 100% Inactive
Limited liability company
PAEFERITBERAA Lak &5 ARAQA 10,000/ 7T — 100% TEXH
B&S Films Production Limited Ordinary Hong Kong, limited HKD10,000 — 100% Inactive
liability company
FREZREERDA Lak &5 ARAQA 10,0007 T — 100% WmEH
BIG Pictures Limited Ordinary Hong Kong, limited HKD1 — 100% Films production in
liability company Hong Kong
ATHERRAR ERKR R RRRA 1%L — 100% REBREY
BIG Artiste Management Limited ~ Ordinary Hong Kong, limited HKD1 — 100% Artiste management in
liability company Hong Kong
RTRAEERARA TRk R BRRA 1%L - 100% REBREFEAERE
China Wimetro Communications ~ Ordinary British Virgin Islands, usD1 — 100% Investment holding
Company Limited limited liability
company
TEESETREEERAR  EAR RBRIEE %7 — 100% #KAERK
ARRE
China Wimetro Company Limited ~ Ordinary Hong Kong, limited HKD10,000 — 100% Investment holding
liability company
HEESRETERLA Lak &5 BRAQAE 10,0007 T — 100% REZK
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36. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continved) 36. SEMEAE (2

Nominal value

Place of incorporation

of paid up

Class of and kind of issued share Attributable equity interest
Name of subsidiary shares held  legal entity capital attributable to the Group Principal activities
B8R
ERAILER ERTRE
WEBASEH FRRHEN ZEERER FRmfE FEEREER TEER
Directly ~Indirectly
E& il
Fleur Group Limited Ordinary British Virgin Islands, UsD15,000 — 100% Holding of copyrights in
limited liability Hong Kong
company
Fleur Group Limited LAk ABRIEE 15,000% 0 — 100% REERAMIE
AR LA
Getbetter Enterprises Limited Ordinary British Virgin Islands, usD1 100% — Investment holding
limited liability
company
Getbetter Enterprises Limited EER RBERELHES 157 100% — REAER
BRAT
Joyful New Limited Ordinary British Virgin Islands, UsD1 100% — Investment holding
limited liability
company
Joyful New Limited EAER EERUES 127 100% — REAERR
BRAT
Shenzhen Huanlian Contributed PRC, limited liability HKD1,000,000 — 100% Provision of agency,
Communications Technology capital company consultancy and
Company Limited management services
AITABBERNERLE LA hE - AREELT  1,000000% T - 100% RERE BRR

TEHEFEEARLA 2010F &
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36. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 36.

Nominal value
Place of incorporation of paid up

Class of and kind of issued share

Name of subsidiary shares held  legal entity capital
ESEH

ERAILLER ERTRE

WBASEH FRRHEN ZEERER FRmfE

FEMBAS S

Attributable equity interest
attributable to the Group Principal activities

FRERERSD TEEH
Directly ~ Indirectly
E& [k

Shenzhen Kunyu Communications  Contributed PRC, limited liability RMB10,000,000

Technology Company Limited capital company
RAITHRTRERMBERRR  HE TE - BREER AEE
10,000,0007T
Total Big Limited Ordinary Hong Kong, limited HKD1
liability company
EIBRRA LER A BRRA 18T
37. DEED OF CHARGE 37.

Pursuant to a production finance agreement signed
between Total Big Limited (“TBL"), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, and the Government of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (the “HKSAR")
on 18 February 2009 in respect of the production of a
film titled “Give Love”, the title of the film and the whole
of TBL's undertaking and assets were charged in favour of
the HKSAR as security for the discharge of the obligations
of TBL under the agreement.
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— 100% Sales and distribution of
telecommunication
products and provide
wireless services and
outdoor
advertisement media
and film media

— 100% HERDHEERER

REHRERRE
WRPHNEEEE

EVER

— 100% Film production in
Hong Kong
— 100% REEREY

1P %

REARAZZEMBAREINER
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B Fh2MBREEINZZ2E
EXLEECERTEARRE kR
BREIREBEHEZBEAERF 2
& °




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Se BRI S >

For the year ended 30 June 2010 HE=Z~ZFNA=1THIFE

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 38. MBHRAE
2010 2009
—E—-FF —ZETAEF
HKD’000 HKD'000
T#IT FAT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries GIENGIPA - $ 100 100
Deposit paid for acquisition of a L B BT 8 A = Y
subsidiary ENEe 230,000 —
230,100 100
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Prepayments, deposits and other TERFIE - =e R EMERK

receivables FNIE 33,534 1,488
Amounts due from subsidiaries A SIENGIE @ 88 1,676
Cash and cash equivalents RELREFEDY 141,863 20

175,485 3,184
CURRENT LIABILITY ol =R
Other payables and accruals Ho At JE T SR IE K JE BT SR IE 15,141 5,838
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEERERE)

(LIABILITIES) FE 160,344 (2,654)
NET ASSETS (LIABILITIES) BEBRZEE 390,444 (2,554)
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEREE
Share capital [iN 154,282 125,000
Reserves & 236,162 (127,554)

Equity attributable to owners of HAFHEAA
the parent FEAG T = 390,444 (2,554)
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39. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(a)
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Possible major acquisition

Pursuant to the announcement of the Company
dated 4 August 2010, the Company has entered into
a conditional agreement with Mr. Cheung Sing Tai
(the
issued share capital of Smart Long Limited (“Smart
Long”) at a consideration of HKD230,000,000 (“Smart
Long Acquisition”).

“Vendor B"”) for the acquisition of the entire

The consideration of the Smart Long Acquisition will
be satisfied (i) as to HKD120,000,000 payable in cash
as a refundable deposit upon signing of the
agreement; and (ii) as to HKD110,000,000 by way of
the allotment and issue of 687,500,000 consideration
shares at an issue price of HKDO0.16 per share by the
Company to the Vendor B or his nominees (except
for connected person of the Company).

In addition, Vendor B has guaranteed to the
Company that the audited consolidated net profit
after tax and any extraordinary items or exceptional
items of Smart Long and its subsidiaries (collectively
known as “Smart Long Group”) to be determined
under the HKFRSs for the year ending 31 December
2011 shall not less than RMB20,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HKD23,000,000). In the event that
the Smart Long Group cannot achieve the expected
profit, the Vendor B shall pay the Company within
20 business days from the date of issue of the
relevant audited consolidated financial statements of
Smart Long Group in cash an amount equal to the
difference between the audited net profit and the

expected profit on a dollar to dollar basis.

39. BEHKEREE

(a)

RERKMBEIER

BEARAZE—TFNANA
B A AN A E B B Cheung
Sing TaiZc (& 77 2 1) 3t W i
BABRRER) 282 81T
AR (TSR ED T —EA K
% &% - (€ %230,000,000/%
5T o

BRARBoREBEUATAR
X EEMREARSTR
% :1120,000,0003% 7T f‘Ei%T
TREMRES  R)AARD

rﬂaﬁz@zﬁﬁ%/\(ﬂwﬂz
FEATRINEZETEEER
0.168 7t Aic % [ ¥ 17687,500,000
% X & % 17 % 19110,000,000#

ﬁo

Lo EHZ B RARRRE
BEAN E B A A (LI A
EENEE-_ZFZ——F+=A
—t+—HLEFEBREFTE
BHRERNET 2 KEZR
MEEENEFEREMIEL
BEHEEBEEXBRINEETB LR
A R #20,000,0007T (49 41 &
23,000,000 7T) ° fid & BA &
mEIESZBEHANE BEAHL
/AE*” AEBEEMERLCEZ
A ISR BER20EE %
HAMNE & H A RARAR LA
2HEMERNTEEZF
FB=mHMNEcEEE) -
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39. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD (continued)

(a)

(b)

Possible major acquisition (Continued)

Smart Long Group is undergoing reorganisation in
preparation of the Smart Long Acquisition. Upon
completion of the reorganisation, Smart Long will
directly held Cheermay Limited and will indirectly
interest

hold the entire equity in Guangdong

Zhaohong Communications Technology Limited.

Smart Long is an investment holding company. After
reorganization, its subsidiaries are principally engaged
in research and development and sales of

communication products, telecommunication
products, electronic products and computer software

and hardware in the PRC.

Up to the date of this report, the Company had
transferred HKD120,000,000 into a jointly controlled
bank account as a refundable deposit and those
conditions which stated in the announcement dated
4 August 2010 has not yet satisfied.

Change of address of head office and principal
place of business in Hong Kong

The Company changed the head office and principle
13/F,,
York House, The Landmark, 15 Queen’s Road Central,

place of business in Hong Kong to Unit 1303,

Hong Kong with effect from 1 July 2010.

B R R MR S>>

~EFEXNA=+THIFE

39. REMREEH @)

(a)

(b)
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REERKMBEIER )

EHEBERMASEREEHEE
mEFEM - REETKE -
EUREERERBAERAT
EEREEFBERERIKBAEE
BRMMBRARMNZ AR -

rL/_\

B —REEE T
EHEB ENEBRAREERAH

BREAMER BEAEM -
BEFfEMm UWREMEKMHRE

HHMEREE -

HEAREBH ARAEH
120,000,000 T ¥ = — @&
EWRITEPL, EAUTEEH
RESL RZZT—Z=F/\AWA
2N T B B2 E AR R
ERK o

ENEREERTEIEEE
Hh Bh

ARBZBMERLEBLTE
EEMWHENRBTBEEREAE
155k B i B 5 4 e K E1318
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COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

The Group had offset certain balances of trade and other
receivables, trade and other payables at the end of 2009
and 2008.

presentation,

In order to conform with the current year
certain items in consolidated statement of
comprehensive income for the year ended 30 June 2009
and consolidated statement of financial position as at 30
June 2009 and 1 July 2008 has been
Adjustment is made to reclassify the trade and other

reclassified.

receivables amounting to approximately HKD11,765,000
and the trade and other
approximately HKD11,765,500.
have been made in

payables amounting to

In addition, adjustments
respect of other income and

administrative and other expenses amounting to
approximately HKD26,000 and such reclassification has no
impact on the Group’s loss for the year ended 30 June

2009.

40.

A
REBERZZEZENFRZZEZNFF
JE 3K 85 E 5 FE U R 3 I B b B R IE A
LEGENEFRRAMENTIBEZE
Fith - REERFRE 220 AA
HE-_ZThAhFNA=Z+HLEFEZ
Jé%ﬁw %&F_??hiﬂﬁ
—t+HARZZEENFLA—HZESE
HMBMRREz2E TEHEEEENHE -
EAARDNDABEZEWIRR R A
JE UL 3R T8 #911,765,00078 7T A K& B 5
JE T BR R KR A fb BN R IE A
11,765,500/ ST E ¥ %8 o W Hh - IR
Bt E A U A R AT I B H fh 2 49
26,0008 THEHAE - MEBEFHH
HEAEEBEZE_ZENFA=T
HEFEzZEBRBRIRZE -
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COMPARATIVE INFORMATION (continued)

Details of the restatement are provided as follows:

40. tLkiE# (#)

BIFHBEOT

a0 %R RKE>>

NA=tTHIEEE

Amount
originally = Restatement/ Amount as
stated Reclassification restated
RxExR B3
ok} ENNE EHs#H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FAET
Items on consolidated statement E#@E_—_FF A EA
of comprehensive income for =t+ALEEZES
the year ended 30 June 2009 2EWERIEE
Other income E b YA 534 26 560
Administrative and other expenses  {TH & E XX (25,810) (26) (25,836)
Items on consolidated statement R=FBFBHENA
of financial position at 30 =+HZ&%8
June 2009 Mk AREE
Trade receivables E%EH&Z RIE 17,193 11,764 28,957
Prepayments, deposits and other SEERE: Tﬁ/i\&
receivables EIMJEW,T 3,584 1 3,585
Trade and bills H 5N RIE R
payables FEt E 1% 92 11,672 11,764
Other payables and H th J& A 5IR K
accruals J& 5T 3K I8 3,889 93 3,982

PEHFESEEAERAT 20105 ®
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Financial Summary

RS>

The following is a summary of the published consolidated results W FAREBEDH B ZGAEE BER
and of the assets and liabilities of the Group: BEME:
Results £45
Year ended 30 June
BEAA=tHLEE
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
—E-BF —“TTNF Z—ZTTNF Z—ZTTLHF —TITRF
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FHETT FTET FET TET FET
(restated)
(& E5)
Turnover E 1] 44,804 48,394 24,356 5,121 4,103
Cost of sales BEKA (43,191) (48,869) (25,218) (4,735) (4,385)
Gross (loss) profit (£8)/EH 1,613 (475) (862) 386 (282)
Other income i A 2,315 560 955 991 453
Selling and distribution costs HERDHEMAE (6,970) (8,066) (5,655) (1,548) —
Administrative and other expenses {TH & E & A (35,509) (25,836) (19,852) (3,597) (1,478)
Impairment loss recognised in REERER
respect of goodwill BEER (5,895) — — — —
Loss from operating activities E&%iEEE (44,446) (33,817) (25,414) (3,768) (1,307)
Finance costs BEMKA (8) (18) (121) a,17) (1,259)
Loss before taxation BR#rBRE (44,454) (33,835) (25,535) (4,885) (2,566)
Income tax expenses FrEfifY (10) — — (1,235) (595)
Net loss from ordinary activities [ 5 FE{5 B &
attributable to shareholders EBBRTE (44,464) (33,835) (25,535) (6,120) (3,161)
Assets and liabilities EERERE
As at 30 June
R7A=+H
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
—E-%F —TTNF ZZTN\F ZETtHF ZTILTSF
HKD’000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FHET FHT TET FHT TET
(restated) (restated)
(&) (BE5H)
Non-current assets ERBEE 302,654 28,849 47,366 26,147 1,846
Current assets MEBEE 243,098 33,998 34,790 14,508 7,294
Current liabilities MEEE (94,539) (25,766) (11,261) (14,263) (17,612)
Net current assets (liabilities) RBEE(RE)FE 148,559 8,232 23,529 245 (10,318)
Non-current liability ERBER - (21) — — (3,501)
Net Assets BEFAE 452,213 37,060 70,895 26,392 (11,973)
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